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The Universal Postal Union (UPU) is a specialised
United Nations agency made up of 191 member
countries. As a member of the People’s Republic of
China delegation, Hongkong Post plays an active role in
the international arena.
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BEBBBEFIR 2008/09

Last year was challenging but rewarding for Hongkong Post since we steered through a period of
unprecedented turmoil and volatility brought about by the global credit crisis. With the world economy at
real risk of falling into a deep recession, however, our operating performance was unavoidably affected by
sluggish economic activities and negative consumer sentiments.

Against such a backdrop, mail traffic registered an overall decline of 2.1% as compared with 2007/08,
dragged down by domestic mail which fell by 10.9% in the second half of the year, offsetting a corresponding
rise of 3.3% for international mail during the same period. But we managed to meet the annual targets
due to robust performance in the first six months as well as a relentless drive for better productivity and
cost-effectiveness.

Total revenue recorded for the year showed a modest increase of 4.2% to HK$4,556 million on the back
of rising demand associated with e-commerce, enabling us to achieve a return rate of 9.9% on fixed
assets. We are acutely aware of the importance to tighten our grip on this emerging sector of growth,
as reflected by our decision to host the inaugural e-commerce conference of the Universal Postal Union
in May 2009. Apart from according higher priority towards developing innovative ways to improve the
standard and variety of services available to our clients, relocation of the International Mail Centre to
make way for construction of the Shatin to Central Railway presents a timely opportunity to group our
two major sorting centres together under one roof with upgraded systems and equipment for enhanced
capacity and efficiency. Meticulous planning is now being put into this project with a view to ensuring its
smooth execution.

The extraordinary events happening in the past year serve as a reminder to all of us on the need to keep
up with rapid changes in the external environment and seek diversification into new revenue streams.
Specifically, we will focus attention on exploring venues through which synergy could be achieved with our
counterparts in the Mainland by leveraging on the “Outline of the Plan for the Reform and Development
of the Pearl River Delta (2008-2020)".

The outlook for 2009/10 remains shrouded by uncertainties surrounding a fledging economic recovery.
Many external factors such as upward pressure on postal rates brought about by revision of the Terminal
Dues System are beyond our control; the status as a trading fund also largely determines our internal cost
structure. Despite these constraints, we will strive to maintain our core values and corporate culture so
as to sustain quality customer service. Faced with an evolving competitive landscape, Hongkong Post
should build upon its trusted public image and continue to assist small and medium enterprises in coping
with the demanding conditions and underlying dynamics in a globalised market.

We could not have accomplished so much without a firm pledge to serve the community and a steadfast
commitment to uphold our mission statement of “Linking People, Delivering Business”. | would like to
thank our clients for their unwavering support as well as my dedicated team of staff at Hongkong Post for
their exceptional resilience and outstanding professionalism.

Clement CHEUNG
Postmaster General and General Manager of the Post Office Trading Fund

3



4

Hongkong Post Annual Report 2008/09

EB P AL Corporate Overview

M

N B St

Ordinary Mail Warehousing PayThruPost

7N $b 58 TR 23R A RENDE ¥ A AR 75

Local CourierPost Pick & Pack Trade Declaration Service
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Speedpost Inventory Management Postal Remittance Service
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Hongkong Post Circular Service Payment Collection PostShop Products
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Direct Mail Distribution
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Across 168 years of history, Hongkong Post has built up a high level of
trust and respect from the community it serves. We take pride in our
comprehensive, efficient network of retail and distribution facilities across
Hong Kong. We also value our close working relationships with postal
administrations around the world.

In 2008/09, we handled an average of 3.78 million items every single day,
at the same time managing to maintain delivery quality standards that are
amongst the highest in the world. Much of this mail volume was made up
of business correspondence and merchandise, the movement of which
is essential to Hong Kong’s position as a financial and business hub.
We experienced continued growth in the number of letters and parcels
going to international destinations, though the volume of domestic mail
decreased due to the deteriorating economic situation in the second half
of 2008/09.

As a trading fund government department, we aim to operate competitively
and maintain good financial performances without compromising the
standards of service we offer to the community. These are goals that
have encouraged us to explore new business opportunities and expand
our range of services. For instance, we have continued with initiatives to
develop and expand our relationship with the China Post Group, through
services such as cross-border direct mail and Speedpost, and through the
provision of new logistics facilities that will help us become a logistics hub
for the Greater China region.
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Recent developments in electronic communications have also created
opportunities for Hongkong Post. In fields such as online shopping and
direct marketing, we have explored new technology and new models
suitable for emerging needs. Our e-Post services are tapping into new
markets and are growing strongly. We are expanding our increasingly
popular ShopThruPost service in the area of e-commerce, and working
with other postal administrations to create faster, easier and more reliable
solutions for online trading and shopping.

We strive to continue to be the gateway to the Mainland and a major mail
transit hub for all Asia, while also expanding our business by developing
strategic alliances with other postal operators. These developments are
essential steps in ensuring that Hongkong Post continues to be a world-
class postal service provider for the people of Hong Kong.
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% B E IS B A 48 Hongkong Post Strategy Map —

ES - BE - FaNER PURPOSE, VISION, MISSION, VALUES
BMHNES — BOE - EEk Our Purpose - Linking People, Delivering Business

BLE —BABBUATMREMNEENS —WE - B4 InLinking People, Hongkong Post strives to fulfill our social obligation to bring
ZREANEREOBERY - EBUHMEREERSB  people together locally and around the world by delivering correspondence
MERG—EAE  BABTTAZENHGEME - and merchandise promptly and reliably at uniform, affordable prices.

Linking People

FKEE 5 @ cELE R BEEESE
Strategic Comm|tment Care for Customers from the Heart
Direction R ‘EEAREER

Teamwork Care for Colleagues from the Heart

s B B
Open Communication

cBEEKE * AR BIR * IR
Learning & Growth Customers Financial

REEEE
Strategic
Perspectives

: World Class People Customer Focused Sustained Profitability
Strateg|es Organisation

BB A cEREETRE * RAEERG
Management Know the Customers Productivity Enhancement

Succession HRREEES C B
* BRI 1ERE Customer Satisfaction Cost Control
Job Competency RTEREH RIS E
cEHHRBIHRRE Customer Loyalty Business Growth
Career Development R
CHEBETIR Business Expansion
High Morale - mEHER
c EE AT Loss Minimisation
Cultural Alignment

cHABRITEE
Good Employer

CHEBEE XL

Learning Organisation

BEaE

Cluster of Goals

FEE I CREEHREAS BRI A . 415 BB
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In Delivering Business, Hongkong Post creates added value for the
economy of Hong Kong by providing business solutions to different sectors
and maintaining the viability of Hongkong Post through diversification into

c EEME
Productivity

c SHE AT
Innovation

*YMIBFE
Value for Money

s BB AT
Innovate for the Future

CEERER
Business Diversification
s ARREEAE
Strategic Cooperation
CFFEEER

Long-term Viability

new business areas.

Delivering Business

* TR MR AE EY
Proactivity

CERER
Development

* NEPER
Internal Processes

s Rt RARERE
World Class Facilities

* BB E
Cost-effective &
Efficient Facilities

s TERBL R
Safe Workplace

- HEETHE
Excellence
c mIERE

Anticipation

AR EEEREHE
Modern Business
Management Systems

cHEEEMDE
Reputable Brand

- BT RHCE
Process Efficiency

* REBHRE
World Class IT

s HERREE
Quality Performance
Data / Information

cEHEEERE
Total Quality
Management Excellence

* BRI EHRE
Match Competitors

P RAGERE
Local Corporate Image
cREEREER
International Postal
Reputation
‘RBITHEEM
Social Responsibility
* BRTFIRRE
Environmental
Responsibility
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B E#E & Directorate Team

REIFEE BRER & T &£
Mr. Clement CHEUNG Mr. CHAN Yau-fung
EEBRER EEBREIER
Postmaster General Deputy Postmaster General

REBLL ERBERZ L BmBEE
Miss Amy NG Mrs. Iris WONG Mr. Arthur LAU
RE (HIHNEHK) e (BFi5) BE (BEMAFKRSE)

Director (External Affairs) Director (Finance) Director (Information System Services)
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Mr. Michael CHUNG Mr. FONG Yeun-tsin Mr. Patrick A LIN
ERHEMEER (EBRE) ERBHBEER (HBER) BEEHBHEER (BH)
Assistant Postmaster General Assistant Postmaster General Assistant Postmaster General
(Business Development) (Corporate Development) (Postal)

BFErL EEEEE ERRABLT
Ms. Estella CHOW Mr. Allen MOK Mrs. Vivian TAM
BE (EF) BE (RBHARE - HEERHEE) EP M E

Director (Operations) Director (Product Development, Departmental Secretary

Marketing and Sales)
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2008/09 - FZ [E] & Highlights of the Year 2008/09 -

BHE

Mail volume

EEBRAEBH28IBETPMEER PR ©  Hongkong Post serves a total of 2.89 million residential and business
f£2008/09F € + HMEIBHE(FE13.8(81F - BIE#  addresses throughout the territory. In 2008/09 we handled 1.38 billion mail
#2007/08FEEM T #%2.1% - BEFHFHERE=Z() items, amounting to a slight decrease of 2.1% compared with 2007/08,

EIT8HM -

but still representing an average of 3.78 million items per day.

f£2008/09F & » A E GRS EHBAMEEBEH  Local mail accounted for about 86.2% of the total traffic handled by
£186.2% B¥ F—HFE NEK3I.7% > T - Hongkong Post. This represented a 3.7% decrease in volume in 2008/09.
BREHGERE E—EHFE LA9.3%  EABHER  International mail, however, experienced an increase in volume of 9.3%
13.8% c HOBEKEHMEEMNEZEMMAZEE ©  compared with the previous year, accounting for 13.8% of total traffic. The

HRE RN RERBAAR o

FEBHENM
Major overseas
destinations

31%

41%

EMMERE JEZEM
Asia & Asia Pacific ‘ North America
BOM EY)l
Europe South America
EL

. A Africa

major destinations for outgoing international letter mail and parcel traffic
were the USA, the UK, Australia, the Mainland and Japan.

WA (BeEER) BERAE segEn)
Revenue Operating costs
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)

#4 %8 Total $4,556 #4 %8 Total $4,207

1,688

4,353 2,179
G — REDIE AR A5 & BIMAK
General Mail Services Staff Costs
L 3TN —REBBEFERX
Miscellaneous Revenue ‘ General Mail Operating Expenses

THBX
Administration Expenses
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E B IR F R 2008/09

Financial performance

Revenue and operating costs

Hongkong Post recorded total revenue of HK$4,556 million in 2008/09.
This represents growth of 4.2% compared with the previous year and was
mainly attributable to a considerable increase in postings of parcels, bulk
airmail and transshipments during the year under review.

Operating costs for the year were HK$4,207 million, representing an
increase of 6.2% compared with 2007/08. Operating profit totalled
HK$349.3 million for 2008/09, with a rate of return amounting to 9.9% on
Average Net Fixed Assets.

New initiatives for increased efficiency

In 2008/09, Hongkong Post continued to install Vertical Preparation
Postman Fittings at the Tuen Mun Central Delivery Office and Tsuen Wan
Delivery Office to improve its mail preparation work. This, together with the
new mail flow system implemented in early 2009 in conjunction with the
new Mechanised Letter Sorting System (MLSS), has helped us optimise
our staff resources and make our mail delivery service more efficient.

HHE (FEH)
Mail volume
(million items)

1,500
1270 1301 1,331 _:"4‘_’9. 1,379

i e g
1,200 o io1. 16 s

'l
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300
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0 B
International Mail

ST S

Local Mail

At EH4E (FES)
Local mail volume
(million items)

1600
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300
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1,014
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B AR EA - SR E 4

Local Mail Registered Mail
= BBIHH B R BBURIE

B BT R Local CourierPost

Hongkong Post
Circular Service

e His
Others

ERBHE (5EH)
International mail volume
(million items)
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B LEREEERETF @ FIESHEX -
The new mail centre will consolidate Hongkong Post's
operations and enhance its efficiency.

IR

Project
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New Mail Centre Project

In order to make way for the construction of the Shatin to Central Railway, the existing
International Mail Centre (IMC) building located in Hunghom will be relocated to Wang Chin
Street in Kowloon Bay. Hongkong Post also plans to take this opportunity to relocate its
General Post Office (GPO) sorting office to the new building in Kowloon Bay, maximising the
land use and enhancing mail sorting efficiency by consolidating its activities at a single facility
with improved building design, systems and equipment.

On April 17, 2008, a New Mail Centre Division was established to oversee the relocation of the
IMC and the GPO sorting office. A postal consulting firm is assisting in the mail workflow and
building design, equipment specification and procurement, and transitional arrangements relating
to the relocation. The project is expected to be completed in the next three to four years.
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ﬁ Tuen Mun Logistics Centre is equipped with
Ap r ‘08 a warehousing facility
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E 7% iﬂ E& % ﬁ ’El\ ( ‘_'E Fﬂ ) an( Fﬁ The new logistics centre at Tuen Mun is enabling Hongkong Post to expand its
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Opening of Hongkong Post Logistics Centre (Tuen Mun)
The Hongkong Post Logistics Centre (Tuen Mun) began to operate
on April 18, 2008. The Centre is equipped with a state-of-the-art
warehousing facility. Logistics services represent one of Hongkong
Post’s new revenue streams, and the opening of the new Logistics
Centre will enable us to expand our capabilities in this area.

CEEeS)

post offices in our retail network

2 B #8 4% M AR %

A EH2008F5A17HERHE  RERMAOEMEBRRAEAIRERER
HRANBHRY - AFEREBBNRYE - HMBET RBERBMEL
LEBER (BERSEAR HEEBRRE") - KBRAEER  HMANFITHE
HANBB127TEBIRD ©
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: BRHEZHHMGT FABRBRETRHEEMH HFABEBHENRSBNHE
AEEESAEERY - AEBRBE MR B o

PRFsTERE -
To serve customers better, the Shek Wu Hui Post Office
extended the range of services it provides. Branch network and services

The North Point Post Office was closed down on May 17, 2008 as the district
is well served by other post offices nearby. Elsewhere, as part of Hongkong
Post’s programme of continuous improvements, the Tin Yiu Post Office and
Texaco Road Post Office were relocated, with the latter being renamed the
Yeung Uk Road Post Office after relocation. Following these adjustments,
there are now a total of 127 post offices in our retail network.

To better serve our customers in the Sheung Shui area, the Shek Wu Hui Post
Office began accepting postings of bulk airmail, Hongkong Post Circulars,
Permit Mail and mail items for Postage Prepayment in Money with effect from
January 19, 2009.

13
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B EH B E R 2009/10 F &
ETHEIR

post offices have been earmarked for
maintenance work in 2009/10
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Post office maintenance programme

During the year, major renovation work was carried out at Sheung
Wan Post Office, Repulse Bay Post Office, Happy Valley Post Office,
Yau Yat Tsuen Post Office and Tai Koo Shing Post Office. Another 22

FENAMBRBETAMEE TR - post offices have been earmarked for maintenance work in 2009/10.
Five post offices underwent major maintenance works during the year.

7ﬂ BELEREHSE-WABRSE

Jul ’ provides online sellers
ul '08 : :
with a number of one-stop solutions
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Hongkong Post launches new “iMail® service”

The Internet has created many new opportunities for international trading. Back in August
2005 Hongkong Post introduced a “Bulk Registered Air Mail service” (BRAM) to support
the development of e-commerce. With online trade now booming, we responded to
market demand for streamlining posting procedures by launching a new “iMail® service”
on July 14, 2008 to replace the BRAM service. This new service facilitates customs
pre-declarations, and offers customers a fast, simple and reliable way of making bulk
postings. It also includes two value-added options: a supplementary insurance service
and an online credit card payment facility.

The new “iMail® service” also provides online sellers with a number of one-stop solutions
such as information on postal restrictions and enhanced mail tracking facilities for
major destinations.
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Implementation of an Electronic Customs Pre-advice System - -
We continue to explore new technology with a view to further streamlining our e

—— T
operations and providing customers with better, faster services. In the past g —

year, we completed the development of an Electronic Customs Pre-advice ——— — -
System which allows our Speedpost account customers to prepare posting e

documents and enquire about posting history via the Internet. Customs
declaration information can also be transmitted electronically to overseas
destinations that require electronic customs pre-clearance.

was established

ROETSEREAERELGARBOFTR  FEBHN20094F
ARVE_EBEBRPL -  REMEBEED LD BIEE FES
MEKFPREZES  ERPAENRETRARZAXSERTH
BHAR > NEEEABRMETER

Expanding the e-Post business

In response to demand for an integrated service for processing the
mass-mailing of statements, in February 2009 a second e-Post
Centre was established. Both of our e-Post Centres are equipped
with sophisticated machinery and high level security systems, giving
us the ability to provide clients with postal solutions which are not
only comprehensive, but also extremely secure when it comes to the
handling of personal data and confidential information.

BEBPOLARPRUAZENL2NBHEIER

e-Post centres provide clients with comprehensive and secure postal solutions.
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BEBELE "—A—F" EH -
Students were keen in participating in the “One Person, One Letter” activity.

HEEBERFEH
free post items were handled this year

AT RERFH
BETERERNBATN EREBESMNIA - 2008F10A9H - RBFEHKRBARYE
REELBBRAR  XBFEEBEN "RERFH " HRYTL2ERT -HLAGH - R
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HREHA - NEEBMEEEAZHATF -

SF - ZBBER (RBBBBHRIN) AREMNFHIRTHELKEEAI8,000H 2 ERFEMT
AN REFOHTE -

“One Person, One Letter” Free Post Day

Letter-writing is not only a traditional method of communicating, it is also one of the most
personal and intimate ways of doing so. On October 9, 2008, Secretary for Home Affairs Mr
Tsang Tak-sing visited the General Post Office in support of “Free Post Day”, organised by
Hongkong Post, where he took the opportunity to post a personal letter free of charge. This
was the fifth time Hongkong Post has given people the opportunity to send a personal letter
free of charge to a recipient in Hong Kong. The purpose of this initiative is to promote letter-
writing as a unique mode of communication, to encourage people to express their love and
care towards others in writing, and to celebrate World Post Day, when countries around the
world celebrate the anniversary of the establishment of the Universal Postal Union (UPU).

This year, the special posting boxes installed in all post offices, except the mobile post offices,
collected over 48,000 free post items, about four times as many as last year.



EBBBER 200800 17

1 2ﬂ T8 7 41148 B 72 20084F 12 5 Z20004F 3 7 5 A 4 1
D ec ’O 8 discount offers between December 2008 and March 2009
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“Linking People, Delivering Business” Offers from Hongkong Post

To help SMEs in the difficult business environment, we introduced 11 discount offers between December
2008 and March 2009. These offers, which were very well received, included a “$20 off” deal for each
Speedpost item posted, 10% off postage for Speedpost Freight and FreightPLUS services, a new “Economy
Express” service to Guangdong Province, a significant price cut for users of the time-critical “Next Flight Out”
service, a half-price offer for those requiring the Speedpost pick-up service, and special discounts on the
Hongkong Post Circular Service.

Collaboration Between Hongkong
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Hongkong Post and Korea Post collaborate on e-commerce
Hongkong Post believes that fostering closer cooperation between postal
administrations will allow it to better grasp business opportunities arising
from booming online trade, as well as helping counter the negative impact
of the recent economic turmoil. On February 18, 2009, a new e-commerce
collaboration between Hongkong Post and Korea Post was launched, which
aims to introduce customers to a wide selection of popular products from
e-merchants. This new collaboration will provide more cost-effective
promotion and delivery options in both Hong Kong and South Korea.
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Letter business

EABBRENTEGFEUAT R ESRE ! Hongkong Post’s plans for the coming year include the

following initiatives:
BRRARE  AHEBRHEEZHE - e Capture more e-Post business by upgrading its facilities.

o HIRMHEBP LR HEBERFER "BEBBEHE o Provide an on-line facility for customers to access the Hongkong Post
TR MEHBEAETTLE - AE - TEHERN Circular Service and check past transaction records. The feasibility of
RAUEFFaETEMREER (§l07KRE S K building upon this electronic platform to implement other improvement
) B RITTHE o initiatives such as an opt-out mechanism will also be explored.

o INoRERAERAMIEB M EIIKHRE - HimE—2F B o Foster business partnerships with relevant organisations as part of our
HiHEEmIS development of the direct mail market.

o HAHEBREZZAIE  IEEEEHEKERSEE o Work closely with China Post to extend the cross-border direct mail
EFEZAMEBHT service to more major Mainland cities.

e W S

N4 |nternational mail business

o AR LEPIRHE—MARBHL - WRZIEMEIK o Facilitate cross-border e-commerce by providing Internet merchants
KEFR  BWERBEREFEEER ° with one-stop shop, logistics support and global delivery solutions.

ZEEBEADARBHEERMANAR - e Consolidate Hong Kong’s position as an Asia Pacific transit hub.

= WELEE/PrE S

| Retail and Logistics business
o LB FIEFNIRGE - UkZRGALE - e Continue to expand the service outlets for electronic remittances, thus
improving the service network.
e RABREREM + LAMNBYIREREFZME o » Enhance our logistics infrastructure by upgrading the Warehousing

Management System.

o EHRE BRELAEBHIBEERS  HEBMF e Enable ShopThruPost customers to trace their orders more conveniently
BEE - by linking them to our Mail Track and Trace System.
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Instituting a culture of “lean management”
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We arranged workshops to promote the culture of “lean management”.

Improving productivity, efficiency and quality of service has been
an ongoing initiative for Hongkong Post. Over the past year, the
Productivity Quality Management System (PQMS) has continued to
be implemented at our mail sorting centres, taking advantage of the
introduction of a new mail workflow alongside our new Mechanised
Letter Sorting System (MLSS). PQMS includes a number of “lean
management” concepts, such as waste minimisation and “Just-
In-Time”. The system has been successful in simplifying the work
environment, improving efficiency and reinforcing good mail
processing work practices. It has also given rise to a number of
other benefits, such as improving teamwork and boosting morale,
creating clear work objectives and responsibilities amongst
supervisors and staff, transforming improvement concepts into
workable plans and, generally, helping create a staff culture of
continuous improvement.

We are committed to extending the PQMS programme in the years
to come into other areas of our operations, such as counter service
and mail delivery, so as to foster a “lean management” culture.
In the meantime, we are continuing to offer staff a range of “lean
management” training and learning opportunities, with the aim of
maintaining a safe and efficient work environment at Hongkong Post
and providing consistently high quality service to our customers.

BRAEBRAEMLHERENES  TRYHEERSHEERBR -
Supervisory officers visited the Toyota factory in Guangzhou to see its production system
in operation.
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The Universal Postal Union (UPU) is a specialised United Nations agency
made up of 191 member countries. Every four years, member countries
send delegates to the Universal Postal Congress, where major issues are
discussed and voted on. Hongkong Post participates in UPU meetings as
amember of the People’s Republic of China delegation, and plays an active
role both in the UPU and the Asia Pacific Postal Union (APPU). Some of
the areas in which we have been involved include the EMS Cooperative,
the Terminal Dues Work Group and Parcels Sub-Group, as well as the Asia
Pacific Post Cooperative (APP).

Promoting Hong Kong’s reputation and influence in the
international arena

Hongkong Post continues to serve as one of the seven members of the
EMS Cooperative Board of the UPU. This board was established in 1999
to improve EMS standards worldwide.
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Hongkong Post also co-chairs a study sub-group of the UPU’s Terminal
Dues Project Group. This group was established to help design a new
terminal dues system, by which postal administrations charge one another
for processing and delivering inward international mail. In March 2009,
Hongkong Post took up the position of Co-Chair heading a UPU Letter
Mail Product Development and Marketing Group, which aims to develop
a new letter post product for UPU members. At the same time, we
continue to serve as a member of the Steering Committee of the Terminal
Dues Work Group, which is designing a new Terminal Dues System for
implementation in 2014.

Hongkong Post is also one of seven members of the Management Board
of the APP, established in 2000 to promote service improvements in the
region. In March 2009, Hongkong Post was re-elected as the Chair of
APP.

Facing the challenge of a forced increase in

international postage

The terminal dues system is an international cross-charging mechanism
by which payments are made to destination postal administrations for
the delivery of mail. As a result of changed UPU rules that will affect
Hongkong Post from 2010, we will see a significant increase in terminal
dues expenditure over the next few years.

EABBI N RHEEZN A NE R BERS

Hongkong Post is committed to achieving high levels of service, both locally and internationally.
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New and expanded Mainland Courier Services

Over the past year we have expanded the scope of our Express Mail
services to the Mainland by adding “Cash on Delivery”, “Postage Paid
by Addressee”, “Economy Express” and “Next Morning Delivery” options.
We have also integrated a number of new and flexible services into our
business solutions for customers, in areas such as pricing, delivery speed
and collection of payment for goods. All these initiatives will enhance the
competitiveness of our business customers in the Mainland market.

e For the “Cash on Delivery” service, we collect cash payments on behalf
of customers when we deliver to Guangdong Province.

¢ Our “Postage Paid by Addressee” service offers the convenience of billing
the addressee for postage on items sent to Guangdong Province.

e The “Economy Express” service offers economical postage rates for
sending bulky items (5kg or above) to Guangdong Province.

e “Next Morning Delivery” guarantees delivery of urgent items to designated
cities in the Pearl River Delta region and Fujian Province by as early as
1pm the following working day. Items to major cities including Beijing
and Shanghai can also be delivered by the following working day.
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Speedpost “Next Flight Out” service launched

Jointly developed by Hongkong Post, Cathay Pacific Cargo and RPX
Limited, the new Speedpost “Next Flight Out” service provides customers
with a personalised courier solution for highly time-sensitive items. This
collaborative venture was launched on October 17, 2008, improving
existing delivery standards and enhancing Speedpost’s range of services.

New advertising campaign for Speedpost brand

In October 2008, Speedpost set out to revitalise its brand with a new
advertising campaign. The campaign focused on four core benefits of
Speedpost: how it is “Convenient”, “Reliable”, “Value-for-money” and
provides “Worldwide coverage”. The campaign also emphasised the
Speedpost team spirit, using the tagline “No matter how small your
package, it’s still a big deal to us. Because... we care more”.

Looking to the future

The last twelve months have been difficult for all international courier
players. There has been a rapid decrease in demand for our Speedpost
services, and we have faced increasingly keen competition from integrators.
To respond to these challenges, we have fine-tuned our overall business
direction and redirected our business strategy towards creating a stronger
customer base and promoting a high-quality brand image. Given the
close relationship between the Mainland and Hong Kong, we will continue
our efforts to promote Speedpost and its valuable new services for the
Mainland market.

In July 2009, France, Spain, the United Kingdom and Singapore joined
the Kahala Posts Group (KPG), bringing the number of KPG members
to ten. Hongkong Post is part of this strong international alliance, which
is dedicated to delivering a high level of courier service. As one of the
founding postal administration members of KPG, we will continue to work
with other members on projects to enhance customer service quality and
boost the quality of our end-to-end delivery services, for example by jointly
developing and implementing new service initiatives.

B FREER2008F10 ARAZINEBIEE - AMENES
Speedpost revitalised its brand in October 2008.
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The local mail environment continues to pose competitive challenges, but
Hongkong Post is well-placed to face these due to our combination of
service efficiency and reliability, and our ongoing initiatives for enhancing
service standards. We will continue to drive growth in the letter mail
business by tapping the potential of direct mail, exploring innovative one-
stop mail solutions and further developing our e-Post business.

New e-Post business opportunities
Having now established two e-Post Centres, we plan to capture more
business by upgrading the facilities.

FRRMERIPHIMSZ13.8(814 -
We handled 1.38 billion mail items during the year.
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99.9% of local mail was delivered on the next
working day after posting — the highest performance
level of its kind in the world.
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Targeted marketing through Direct Mail

We will continue to foster business partnerships with relevant organisations
as part of our development of the direct mail market. One of our key focuses
will be the launch of the DM Tracker service, which will allow marketers to
track specific direct mail programmes.

Taking Direct Mail across borders

One of our strategic directions involves extending our existing cross-border
direct mail service to more destinations, through collaborations with other
postal administrations. We will work closely with China Post to extend the
existing cross-border direct mail service beyond Shenzhen and Dongguan
to other major Mainland cities.
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Developing collaborations

With the opening of the Hongkong Post Logistics Centre in Tuen Mun
in April 2008, we are now able to provide clients with warehousing and
logistics services. In its first full year of operation, the Logistics Centre has
received and dispatched more than two million items. Its wide scope of
services includes warehousing and stock management, pick and pack,
local delivery, online order tracking, handling import and export declarations
and import license applications, arranging cross-border transportation,
and freight forwarding services.

Leveraging on our delivery network

Our comprehensive delivery network continues to support the
government’s receipt and dispatch services, including services such as
inter-library exchange of books and document exchange between offices,
departments and agencies. In addition, we provide fulfilment services
for local e-merchants by delivering lightweight products such as cosmetics
and small electronic devices.



B URE MRETHEER

f£2008/09F [ + "#RE" B LELFEWEESXEER
A BEWIBRIZEIY - HE "SHE BAEM
CEIBE15000A  HMATLXETETHERNETER

A AR CERET WRIEE - BN EREN
EREHE EnE ARENSHAKELY  BE

N ERE S -

200943 A » HMEH "KmEB" R - MiEEZIR
HEFRESRNOBE - £HAE BRI ZHUMR
ERFAMFEEEEZAORE - AREEFTEOR
EBYRE - B0 BAREESNAFKGE (FER
BAXNE) MKERS - SEETER - ®UuAF
HEBNEMBBNBETEEM  MEEEAEM
FTINARI 5 5 33 B I L o

BENELHEEYHEE THHOERBHERDY

K 02000928  RMERDBRAE - £ 2%
B BLBNSHE - RREES  URESEE

BB Y RERAFPREHRVMEMENESEMEXT
EoRMPAEEHBREBIEEMEAIE - LIRS
tAEEDERMBEROEHE - EMEEIMEOER
ROBEFE - b/ BHATEEMHEREEERRE
FREEAE-

=B EBIEF R 2008/09

Expanding e-commerce with ShopThruPost

Our ShopThruPost online platform recorded excellent sales performance
in 2008/09, achieving year-on-year revenue growth of 95%. We now
have over 15,000 registered members, who are kept updated about
developments in ShopThruPost via regular newsletters. Seasonal highlights
included a special ShopThruPost promotion over the Christmas period
that offered gifts with purchases.

In March 2009 we revamped the ShopThruPost service to integrate it
better with our range of other e-commerce solutions. This revamp involved
enhancing the website layout, adding a more user-friendly interface and
creating a better “ambience” for shopping online. We also added extra
payment options (China Union Pay and Alipay), and increased the range of
delivery options. The number and variety of products available for online
purchase were increased, and we also added an easy-to-use address
book function for our members.

There has been strong growth of outward international mail traffic generated
by Internet trade in Hong Kong.In February 2009, we collaborated with
Korea Post to provide Hong Kong customers with a wider selection of
Korean products in our Internet shopping mall, “ShopThruPost”, using our
value-for-money promotion and distribution solutions for their merchants.
We believe that postal administrations should collaborate more closely to
grasp the business opportunities arising from booming online trade, and
to counteract the negative impact of recent economic uncertainties. We
have also begun to collaborate with other postal administrations in the
area of e-commerce.

HMWKEREBERZ - RYREBRHEEESUER -

Our comprehensive delivery network provides essential support for our logistics service.
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Overview of 2008/09 special stamp issues

In 2008/09, Hongkong Post issued seven sets of special stamps, two
stamp sheetlets and one special stamp mini-pane, along with a number of
other products of special interest and collectability. The colourful special
stamp issues continued in a tradition of celebrating themes both topical
and timeless, all with a special Hong Kong relevance.

With the world’s attention turned on China in 2008 as host of the Olympic
Games, the theme for some of the special stamps and products was
obvious. The first Olympic special product was a Heartwarming stamp
mini-pane showing the Torch Relay route in Hong Kong, followed in August
by a special stamp set celebrating the Olympic Equestrian events, which
were for the first time held in Hong Kong. To round out the Olympic theme,
Hongkong Post also issued a Limited Edition Prestige Stamp Album
containing both the Olympic mini-pane and special stamps, together with
some fascinating collectibles.

A number of stamp issues took the natural world as their theme. An issue
on “Jellyfish” in June 2008 with a glow-in-the-dark effect used for the first
time ever on Hong Kong stamps was followed by a popular Giant Pandas
set in July 2008, depicting Hong Kong’s own Le Le and Ying Ying. China’s
remarkable landscape was not forgotten, with a February 2009 issue
showcasing the grandeur of Mount Tianshan, Xinjiang, with its majestic
mountains and dazzling icescape.

Certain popular stamp issues recur every year, such as the Lunar New
Year series. This year (January 2009) we celebrated the Year of the Ox,
with stamps that vividly depicted different breeds of oxen. Interestingly,
paper was a feature of another regular set, Children Stamps, which this
year was titled “Paper Folding Fun”, and showed the winning entries in a
paper-folding competition held by Hongkong Post.

One of the highlights of the year was the issuing of special fundraising
stamp products, each of which came with a genuine paw print of one of
Hong Kong’s Giant Pandas. Proceeds from the sales of these sets went
towards helping preserve the natural habitat of the giant pandas in the
Mainland, which was devastated by the Sichuan earthquake.

Other of the year’s issues included a stamp sheetlet to commemorate
Hongkong Post’s participation in World Stamp Exhibition PRAGA 2008,
a joint issue with the Republic of Korea depicting traditional masks, and
another set of stamps featuring the role of Hong Kong’s judiciary.

Nurturing an interest in philately among young people
Hongkong Post also organised the 10th Inter-School Stamp Exhibits
Competition (November 2008 to February 2009) and the Children Stamps
Design Competition titled “Hong Kong In My Eyes” (January to March
2009), co-organised with the Education Bureau. These activities were very
well-supported, and helped foster young people’s interest in stamps and
stamp collecting.
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Customer feedback

We always value suggestions and feedback from our customers because
they help us review our services and identify areas for improvement. In
the past year we received 1,756 cases of complimentary feedback,
686 (39%) of which expressed appreciation for our counter services and
932 (53%) of which praised our delivery service performance. These figures
suggest the high regard in which the general public holds Hongkong Post.

Further, we experienced a significant fall in the number of complaints
received in 2008/09, with the 1,693 complaints representing a drop of
57.8% compared with the previous year. Most of these were in connection
with delivery and counter services.
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Members of the Customer Liaison Group visited our mail processing centre.
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Customer satisfaction

Consumer Satisfaction Survey

We are pleased to see our service quality widely recognised in the community.
In a study that covered 68 major local goods and services, postal services
ranked highest in terms of consumer satisfaction in the service category.
The study was based on more than 10,000 interviews carried out by the City
University of Hong Kong between June and August last year.

Hongkong Post’s Customer Satisfaction Survey

Our 2008 Customer Satisfaction Survey produced encouraging results
at consistently high levels. Satisfaction levels of 93% were recorded
for our hotline services, 94% for our counter services, and 96% for our
delivery services.

In addition, the survey generated some 1,335 appreciative comments
from customers, indicating the positive relationship that exists between
Hongkong Post and the community.

Customer Liaison Group and Philately Liaison Group

Hongkong Post’s Customer Liaison Group (CLG) and Philately Liaison
Group (PLG) primarily listen to the views of customers about our service
performance. The two groups contain a total of 60 members, and their
key objectives are:

® to enhance customers’ understanding of Hongkong Post’s postal and
philatelic products and services;

e to improve Hongkong Post’s understanding of customer needs and
expectations concerning its postal and philatelic services;

¢ to gauge customer opinions on Hongkong Post’s performance and the
quality of its postal and philatelic services, and use this information to
improve operational efficiency and service standards.

In 2008, for the first time we invited representatives from all the District
Councils to join the CLG. During the year, 14 CLG and PLG meetings
were held, at which a total of 40 topics were discussed. District Councillors
expressed their appreciation for this new channel for exchanging ideas on
postal issues.
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PostalPlus for SMEs

Our “PostalPlus for SMEs” scheme has proved an effective communication
platform linking Hongkong Post and local SMEs, and we have used it
to keep SMEs informed of the latest postal solutions and market trends.
Since its establishment in 2003, “PostalPlus for SMEs” has attracted more
than 38,000 corporate members. Over the past year, we continued to
attract new members by offering privileges encouraging SMEs to try out
our services. Through our regular eNewsletter, we shared tips on the
different postal services available, and on how to handle important customs
declarations. Inaddition, we invited some successful entrepreneurs to share
their strategies for business growth in the current economic climate.

With the aim of helping SMEs with business growth and networking, we
organised a number of seminars in conjunction with global online trading
platform providers that discussed the latest trends in SME business
expansion via online trading. We also participated in World SME Expo
2008, organised by the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, where
we presented our one-stop value-for-money postal solutions, designed to
support SME business activities. In all these events we were able to share
success stories with our members, while also providing them with useful
market information for developing their businesses.
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Customer Relationship Management

Hongkong Post has run a Customer Relationship Management (CRM)
system since 2005, with the aim of meeting market demand and becoming
more competitive by providing quality services. The CRM system has
been highly effective, helping us boost our sales, marketing and customer
service operations.

During the year, we tailored the CRM system to create a range of marketing
offers for our business account customers. The system generates regular
reports on customer and marketing programme performances, which
enable us to understand our customers’ needs better. Using these reports,
our Customer Relations Executives made thousands of telephone calls
to customers each month to tell them about which of Hongkong Post’s
service solutions were particularly suited to their business needs. We
also used the CRM data to keep our service operations updated on the
changing expectations of customers, which has resulted in new initiatives
to better suit the needs of our customers.

ERRMERE  MREEBBEIR - U NEERREBNRZY EHARK -

“PostalPlus for SMEs” regularly organises seminars on postal solutions that help SMEs with networking and business growth.
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One of the goals of Hongkong Post is to create a highly motivated
workforce that enjoys high levels of job satisfaction. We are achieving this
through our “World Class People” strategy, which amongst other things
addresses issues of staff training and development, staff communications
and the recognition of staff performance. In particular, we are committed
to providing all staff with training opportunities that will equip them with
the essential skills and attitudes needed for delivering a quality service to
the public.

Training and development

We have continued to deliver a wide range of training programmes to enhance
the competence and commitment of our workforce. There were 33,095
training days in 2008/09, slightly more than last year’s figure of 32,830.

Following a revamp of our training curriculum, we have developed a series
of new vocational training courses designed to help supervisors improve
their performance. We have also designed an in-house customer service
module that covers the skills needed for handling complaints.

To prepare our people for the smooth implementation of the Productivity
and Quality Management System (PQMS), we organised a workshop on
“lean management” for all our operations managers in July 2008, and
arranged for supervisory officers to visit the Toyota factory in Guangzhou
to see the Toyota Production System in operation. With the introduction
of a new Mechanised Letter Sorting System and the full implementation
of PQMS in our mail processing centres, we organised a series of Change
Management Workshops to help supervisors cope with these changes.
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Our Staff Training Centre serves to foster a culture of continuous learning and improvement.
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We also introduced a new series of Competence Development
Programme (CDP) for frontline staff, putting an emphasis on improving
staff communication skills and reinforcing a “can-do” spirit. Over 2,500
staff members participated in the CDP in 2008/09.

We rolled out a number of initiatives during the year to promote
integrity management within Hongkong Post. Besides making integrity
management a part of all induction courses for new recruits, an integrity
management module has been added to the CDP targeted at our floor
supervisors and frontline staff. Across the year more than 2,000 officers
attended these programmes. From time to time we also arrange talks by
Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) officers designed
to make staff more aware of the areas of their duties most at risk from
corruption. All these programmes have been developed with the aim of
nurturing, developing and sustaining a culture of ethical behaviour in our
staff.

During the year, we continued to offer a range of training and development
programmes to managers of different ranks. We sent staff on postal
management courses at the Asian-Pacific Postal College in Bangkok,
to a national studies programme held in the Mainland and local public
courses on project management, transport management and supply-
chain management. We also arranged for senior officers to attend a
renowned Executive Management Programme, comprising a series
of workshops on leadership, strategic analysis, marketing and the
management of financial issues. Some of our senior officers were also
sponsored to attend an Executive MBA Programme.

Apart from giving induction training to new recruits at managerial level,
we also commissioned the Asian-Pacific Postal College to provide them
with a two-week in-house training programme on international postal
operations. Following this, the new recruits got to widen their international
exposure through visits to SingPost and Pos Malaysia.
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To foster a culture of continuous learning, we continued to provide evening
courses in Putonghua, English and computer skills for all staff. In 2008/09,
we went a step further by developing a Putonghua and English self-learning
kit, which staff can use to improve their language skills at their own pace.

Health and Safety programmes

In 2008/09, Hongkong Post became the first Government Department to
implement a pilot Work Safety Behaviour Programme, which was launched
at the International Mail Centre. Financed by the Civil Service Bureau
(CSB), the programme aimed to identify and improve unsafe behaviour
and to cultivate proactive work safety attitudes at shop floor level, leading
to ongoing improvements in health and safety. Our experiences in
implementing the programme were later shared with other Bureaux and
Departments, at the CSB’s Occupational Safety and Health Seminar held
in October 2008.

During the year, a selection of Hongkong Post offices underwent the annual
safety audit “Continual Improvement Safety Programme Recognition Of
System (CISPROS) Level II”, which was carried out by an Occupational
Safety & Health Council consultant. In addition, the sorting office at the
International Mail Centre, the Shek Wu Hui Delivery Office and the Queen’s
Road Post Office were all selected as pilot offices designated to work
towards attaining CISPROS Level lll Certification in 2009.

A professional consultancy service helped Hongkong Post implement
the 5S programme at the Air Mail Centre. In addition, various operational
divisions of Hongkong Post developed 5S revamp programmes that will
be adopted in phases by all offices, helping cultivate and sustain good
housekeeping practices amongst Hongkong Post staff.

We organised an “Occupational Safety & Health Week” to enhance staff awareness of health and safety issues.
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Hongkong Post held its first-ever fundraising auction of stamp products.
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Fundraising for victims of the Sichuan earthquake

On May 24, 2008, Hongkong Post held its first-ever fundraising auction
of stamp products and banknotes for Sichuan Earthquake Relief, with
the support of Sotheby’s Hong Kong. The auction, held at the General
Post Office, generated a total bid value of HK$1 million, which was
supplemented with donations of over HK$160,000 from Hongkong
Post staff and HK$200,000 from Sotheby’s Hong Kong. The grand total
of HK$1.36 million was handed over to the Home Affairs Department
to help fund emergency relief operations in connection with the
Sichuan earthquake.

Counter network to collect donations

We worked with the Home Affairs Department to broaden the channels
available for the public to donate to victims of the Sichuan earthquake, by
placing donation boxes at all of our post offices (except the mobile post
offices).

Job training programme for young people with disabilities
Hongkong Post has continued to take part in the Social Welfare
Department’s Sunnyway Programme, which offers job training attachments
to young people with disabilities. The scheme gives disabled young people
the chance to gain work experience, employment skills and good work
habits in real-life work environments. In 2008/09 we offered job training
attachments to three youngsters, all of whom successfully completed their
programme in Hongkong Post.

PostCare Club

In 2008/09, the PostCare Club took part in a number of social service
activities that helped people from all walks of life. Members of the Club
and their families did voluntary work to make our society a better place to
live, which included cleaning and redecorating homes of the elderly, visiting
people living alone, and organising gatherings for the aged. Recipients
warmly recognised the enthusiasm and commitment of PostCare Club
members. The PostCare Club is committed to Hongkong Post’s culture of
“Love and Care”, and will continue to team up with charitable organisations
to offer voluntary services and show care to those in need in the
coming year.
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Responsibility to the environment

Hongkong Post is committed to protecting the environment and
supporting sustainable development within the community, especially by
carrying out all its services and internal operations in an environmentally
responsible manner. To this end we have introduced a number of “green”
office practices that are helping us save energy and paper, reduce waste
and recycle materials. More generally, we are promoting environmental
awareness right across our staff, encouraging them to use resources and
energy prudently and efficiently.

Initiatives and achievements for the environment in 2008/09
Hongkong Post helps promote environmental awareness by issuing
promotional stamp sets with environmental or conservational themes.
Over the past year we issued a number of such sets, including a set of
stamps depicting a range of Jellyfish in June 2008, followed in July 2008
by a limited prestige edition of Giant Panda stamps and stamp products,
which came with a Giant Panda Paw Print. Proceeds were donated to
the “Sichuan Earthquake Relief Giant Panda Base Rebuilding Fund”. In
February 2009 we celebrated China’s natural beauty in our “Mainland
Scenery Series No. 8” stamp sheetlet, depicting beautiful Mount Tianshan
in Xinjiang.
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Our colleagues were enthusiastic in support of a tree-planting campaign.
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In accord with the Clean Air Charter, all our post offices undergo regular
indoor air quality (IAQ) checks. Four of our Post Offices — namely, the
new Tuen Mun Delivery Office, the Shek Wu Hui Post Office, the Tin Yiu
Post Office and the Yeung Uk Road Post Office — have successfully been
registered in the “Hong Kong Energy Efficiency Registration Scheme for
Buildings” as complying with the Code of Practice for Energy Efficiency of
Lighting Installations.

All Hongkong Post vehicles use unleaded, low-sulphur fuel, and measures
to improve fuel efficiency such as switching off engines while waiting are
now the norm. We have also continued adding environmentally-friendly
vehicles to our fleet to help reduce emissions, and now have a total of five
Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) vehicles in operation. As older vehicles
come to the end of their working lives, they are being replaced with vehicles
meeting Euro IV standards.

We are committed to promoting green management at many levels. To
reduce our consumption of electricity, we have consolidated our computer
servers and cut down on the number of fluorescent tubes in some office
common areas. We keep a close track on our use of photocopying paper,
more than 30% of which is made from recycled paper. More generally,
we encourage staff to avoid printing out documents wherever possible.
In 2008/09, we also reduced waste by recycling 46,000 used laser
jet cartridges.

We take every opportunity to promote environmental awareness amongst
Hongkong Post staff. For example, we entered a Hongkong Post team for
the Tree-Planting Challenge 2008 organised by Friends of the Earth (HK).
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Our Speedpost service achieved recognition through a number of awards, both locally and internationally.
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Speedpost

In 2008, for the seventh consecutive year, we achieved Gold Level
Certificationinthe Universal Postal Union Express Mail Service Cooperative’s
Audit and Measurement Programme. This is the highest level of recognition
for the outstanding performance of our Speedpost Service.

The award is based on the audit and management programme designed
by the EMS Cooperative of the Universal Postal Union, and conducted by
an independent auditor amongst over 200 express mail service operators.
Criteria for the award include delivery performance, timely provision of
tracking data, and call centre performance. Only four postal administrations
worldwide were awarded Gold Level Certification last year.

Our excellent Speedpost performance also received the following
recognitions in 2008/09:

¢ “PRIME Award for Brand Excellence 2008 -
Express Services category” organised by PRIME Magazine

¢ “The Best SME Partners 2008 - Logistics” organised by
Economic Digest

¢ “Hong Kong Leaders’ Choice - Excellent Brand of Business
Express Services” organised by Metro Finance
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Hongkong Post’s website received accolades for its user-friendly design.
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Corporate Brand Award and Customer Service

Excellence Awards 2008

Awards organised by Ming Pao Newspapers Limited jointly with the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Association for Customer
Service Excellence (HKACE) all included accolades for Hongkong Post:

e “2008 Corporate Brand Judging Panel Award” (Public Service
Category) organised by Ming Pao Newspapers Limited and the
Chinese University of Hong Kong (Msc Marketing)

e “Customer Service Excellence Award 2008” Individual Award
(Field & Special Service) - Bronze Award, organised by HKACE

e “Customer Service Excellence Award 2008” Program-based
Award - Bronze Award for the Internet Services Team’s project on
“Implementation of Voice Website”, organised by HKACE

Other achievements in 2008/09

e “Web Care Award 2007-08” — Gold Prize for the Hongkong Post
Stamps website, organised by the Internet Professional Association

e “Web Care Award 2007-08” — Excellence for the Hongkong Post
website, organised by the Internet Professional Association

e “Web Care Award 2007-08” — Excellence for the Speedpost website,
organised by the Internet Professional Association

e “22nd International ARC Awards Competition” (Logistics
Enterprise category) — Gold Award for the Hongkong Post Annual
Report 2006/07

e “22nd International ARC Awards Competition” (Mail and
Document Management category) — Bronze Award for the
Hongkong Post Annual Report 2006/07

e “20th Hong Kong Print Awards Competition” (Packaging Printing
- Consumer Product Paper Box) — Merit Award for the 2007
Prestige Annual Stamp Album (Ordinary Version)

EEBHAE BEERHMEERETERAR"  CEVREXAR -
Our strong corporate identity was recognised with a “Corporate Brand
Judging Panel Award”.
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Bk #% % Performance Pledge

We are proud to report that we fully met our performance pledges for
2008/09, and we exceeded our targets in 19 of our 24 pledged standards.
One achievement worth highlighting is that we managed to deliver 99.9%
of letters posted locally to recipients in Hong Kong on the next working
day after posting, against a stringent target of 98%. From time to time,
we review our pledges with the aim of further improving our services. For
2009/10, we have reduced to four working days the time that we pledge
to take processing applications for Freepost, Business Reply Service and
International Business Reply Service.

We are fully committed to achieving our performance pledges over the
coming year, and thus continuing to provide the highest quality postal
service for our community.

E$) Bz
Performance Targets
08/09 09/10
i & EBRE 4 Local and International Mail
1. AHERFEANRKRFET —EIERKRERSEA
Deliver locally posted letters to addressees by the following working day. 99.9% 98.0%
2. BERIEHR={ETERAIKERSEA
Deliver Bulk Economy letters to addressees within 3 working days. 100% 99.0%
3. BB B K MRS A D IO E TAER AR ENR A
Deliver Hongkong Post Circular Service items within 4 working days. 100% 99.0%
4, HOMEBEHOREIFHEARST AR KRTEAR T —EIEREXE
EERBMITAMZELRF]
Despatch outward airmail items, posted before the advertised latest
time for posting, to the designated air carrier within the same day or the
following working day. 99.3% 99.0%
5. APz B 12 R E TR R E WA
Deliver inward airmail items within 2 working days after arrival in Hong Kong. 99.9% 99.0%
6. AMRAABRERRTH/EBSEMEIERNRESS  NERFAR
TEIRRENOREA - Hibz IR =@ THERAIKE
Deliver local and inward parcels within 2 working days after day of posting
or arrival to Hong Kong, Kowloon and major commercial and industrial
areas in the New Territories, and within 3 working days to other areas. 100% 99.0%
7. HOMESRONEBEREREIRET  MAIRKRTFERAN T —EIEREXSE
EERBMITAMZERF]
Despatch outward air parcels, posted before the advertised latest time
for posting, to the designated air carrier within the same day or the
following working day. 99.9% 99.0%



EBBBER 200809 49

x~BE Bz
Performance Targets
08/09 09/10

HREIE R A F HERIE Speedpost and Local CourierPost

8.  FRFIR P RISIRARTS & KL = Py R 26 fH A 1R

Provide pick-up service for Speedpost items within the period as

specified in the Service Information Sheet. 100% 99.5%
9. HAFRFEHHMNECEHISMEARET  AIRKRTEBREMEAR

BRRTAEBEMI

Deliver outward Speedpost items accepted before the specified latest

times for posting to air carriers on the same day, subject to availability

of outgoing flights. 99.9% 99.5%
10. AARFRBBESAHONFFREE - TRRFE RIRERHEA - RPFREED

AR T —ETERIRER G A o SRAMER IR EE EFREATEBHA DY

REIREE M - RFA B EFARRNRERG A

Deliver inward Speedpost items on the same day for items arriving before

noon, or the next working day for those arriving later. Subject to special

arrangements, deliver before 9:00am inward Speedpost items that arrive

before 6:00am. 99.9% 99.5%
11, N BRIBUR R B R AR 75 RS & PR SR IR IR

Deliver Local CourierPost items according to the standards specified in
the Service Leaflet. 99.9% 99.5%

3] B1iR
Performance Targets
08/09 09/10

B IR Retail Business

12, FFECHRFEANER R 109 BN ER IR
Serve customers within 10 minutes during non-peak hours. 100% 98.0%
13. ZUHEM/ mEHERE25D ENERERS 1)
Serve customers within 25 minutes during peak hours or periods. (Note 1) 100% 98.0%
14, BUFARLATEZNEN TEMSD EATK
Reset private franking machines at counters within 15 minutes. 100% 98.0%
15, MEMORZEBEBE DT RIGFTETH oA TIEM 160 EER TR
Deliver products under the Local Standing Order Service at counters
within 15 minutes. 100% 98.0%
H1 SBYHeEHRETR  FHAMMNETBET  HIWER  Notel: Peak periods include the first days of issue of philatelic products, seasonal pressure

i REFFNMBENREARSESR  EE—F UK periods such as Christmas, Lunar New Year and the government bills peak collection
WA EAM+ANSE—EL8 - EREHBBA=EHEL time such as the whole month of January and the last week of April, July and October.
IR R MM - Details of specific peak hours for individual post offices are displayed in the public

hall.
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K MBAEFE Our Pledge

E3) Bz
Performance Targets
08/09 09/10
EBRBHBEER Philately and PostShop Products
16. EEEREHNBEETEAENEBBRIBRGETENE
Make products available for collection under the Local Standing Order
Service on the first day of issue of the related special stamps. 100% 100%
17. PRUEE SN S R i 1 Nl TR A a7 5T B 50
Despatch overseas orders within 6 working days from date of receiving
the order. 100% 100%
18. BB FE BRI ANEIERARZARESIRSFNTFE
Open new philatelic accounts within 6 working days from date of receiving
the application. 100% 100%
19, FOUK R 7 1t T8 i 6D R RS 566 o BR 5 12 7S (B TR R B B AT R dm R AZ M1 A
Deliver local orders for PostShop products within 6 working days from date
of receiving the order. 100% 99.0%
E$0) Bz
Performance Targets
08/09 09/10
B 7% ERIKE Certification Authority
20. ETIEEIERARZEBEERRE FRERBORE
Process applications for Hongkong Post e-Cert within the working days
stipulated below: 100% 99.0%

cBEFHFE(EA) — =X
e-Cert (Personal) — 3 days

s EFHE(HKE) — TX
e-Cert (Organisational) — 10 days

e-Cert (Enmpherment) - 10 days

b E&__T_s:ma“jﬂ&‘ ) +x
e-Cert (Server) — 10 days



®RE

Performance
(01:7[0 )

#4 fR 7% Hotlines

21.

RE=ZZIN12DNERERRRER
Answer calls to Hongkong Post hotlines within 3 rings, i.e. within 12 seconds 92.4%

®RE

Performance
(01:7[0 )

WIB i E B BRIE A B E Application for Postal Services

22.

ERETERAMEZ TFIRBE RS
Process applications for the following services within 5 working days: 100%
* B HE
Post Office Boxes
o (FAFLAIEE DM
Use of Private Franking Machine
s ARAERTHBMHIRZEIRS
Opening of Deposit Accounts for posting of mail in bulk

o Bp{FEURRTS

Redirection Service

EMETERABRZ TIIRBOERFE © (22)

Process applications for the following services within 4 working days: (Note 2)

o (% Bl %P AR 7%
Freepost

o 75 2 B 3 AR 75
Business Reply Service

o BIFR 7  B 2 AR

International Business Reply Service

E B IR E R 2008/09

Bz
Targets
09/10

90.0%

BiZ
Targets
09/10

100%

23.

— & TR R 9% 22 & 75 B B0 B B 25 AR 7% 80 FR 5
Process applications for Hongkong Post Circular Service within 1 working day 100%

100%

24.

E2

— {1 e P 0 2 AR PR 40 38

Process applications for Permit Mailing Service within 1 working day 100%

2008/09F € AR AT EX ° Note 2:  Process applications within 5 working days for 2008/09.

99.0%
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MHEBLEES Post Office Trading Fund

HZE2009F3A31H IEFEMNITBRE Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009

R (CEEER KO (F430F)F7(4)5%  Prepared and submitted pursuant to section 7(4)
(EPSEE of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap.430)



& RIBE A Viability

[E] 7 & 2= O ¥R %

WA (AB&ETTET)

X (AB 8RBT

BIERN ABBEITTE)
B8 CABBEMHE)

B EERE AB&SBT)
HEEN (BAS/NRRENEM)
BURBRA (BT)

BEAH

Rate of return on fixed assets
Revenue (HK$ million)

Expenditure (HK$ million)

Profit from operations (HK$ million)
Traffic (million items)

Capital investment (HK$ million)
Productivity (items per man-hour)
Unit handling cost (HK$)

Total number of staff

2008/09

ECE:)
Performance

9.9%
4,556
4,207
349
1,379
249
116
1.70

7,426

E B IR F R 2008/09

2007/08
eSS
Performance

12.2%
4,373
3,960

413
1,409
112
116
1.61

7,778
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BT BE R #E Report of the Director of Audit

EBHBTRERA
Z i

BYESRE
E> Qb3

REPREEZREFMIENFESCESSH
HRELEESHNPERE  ZSEVBE®RE
BIER2009F3A3IEMEEABREH S
ZHEFENERR HRZ2HREBAER
EXRCURTESHERRMERE MM
fRre o

BHEBLEESHKSERB KRR AR
EHWER
HRELEESCHRCEAAERRB (BER
SAEB) (FB430B)F7AELBE BT ERE
AR - BB R BB MRS 3R E B S R
Ko GAMTRERT  ERkEEEIFER
BEEMP s HmE s mER A AT
#l - AEE MR TTFH BN RFF AR
BHHEANERRD  REREREENS
FTBUR « ARIRBRIEL A BN S EHEE ©

ETWHNEE
BOEERRERNBAHZEVHRRNE
HER - RERR (ZEESKRH) F70)KE
RBEFENEFEAETES - GLENR
KEBTBEMAE - WRE RATET - N
EEBREMBERREE T FETAERER
Rt o

Audit Commission

The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Audit Report

To the Legislative Council

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements of the Post
Office Trading Fund set out on pages 56 to 85, which comprise the balance sheet
as at 31 March 2009, and the profit and loss account, statement of changes
in equity and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund’s responsibility for
the financial statements

The General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund is responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430) and Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with section 7(5) of the Trading
Funds Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing standards. Those standards
require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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BT BE R #E Report of the Director of Audit

FaP MITIE Fr A ER R BE A 75 R P &K

SHEERBERENNBIERE - MEENERF
BURR ZaT Bl A0 H l - BREFEARKEFK

HRMERM B HRERTFAEAHRBANE
% o AR ERRE - FTAEEEZE
i%ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ¢ﬁﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@%
MBS - ARFHEEMEZF - BA I
ﬁﬁ%@%ﬂ%hﬂmﬂ EBERER - Fit
NERFIERRELEECBRKEMERAN
SR BERNAEERAELN S RENG
Bl UARFEMBRROBBINELA -

BAGE BAESHENEREESARREE
R AESERIRHER

=R

BRA ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁyﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi

EAEEMF B HRMBBELEES R
20094 3ABTHAMM A REZZ B IEFER
BENERBRERE  TEKRR (ZEES
&) SB7ARFTRERN AR Z BRE -

B EER
(B EPEERRBARHRT)

EiE

EEET
ETITETHR

AR B ARNIE261E
200949 A 24H

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the General Manager, Post Office Trading Fund, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Post Office Trading Fund as at 31 March 2009 and of its results of
operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the manner provided in section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance.

b . f

(CHAN Bar-keung)
Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

Audit Commission

26th Floor, Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

24 September 2009
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Profit and Loss Account

3 2009 2008

Note ERHKS000 [EEARINe00)
BxE Turnover 3 4,555,934 4,373,158
BIER A Operating costs 4 (4,206,660) (3,960,365)
EERF Profit from operations 349,274 412,793
b () /WA Other (expenses) / income 5 (22,516) 136,374
R AT & R Profit before tax 326,758 549,167
g Taxation 6 (66,782) (77,044)
RBLEE R Profit after tax 259,976 472,123
BERE Proposed dividend 7 129,988 236,062
B £ & = B ;] R Rate of return on fixed assets 8 9.9% 12.2%

o

F60E85E MM AAMBMEN —H 5 The notes on pages 60 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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& & B &3k Balance Sheet

e 2009 2008
Note & ¥ HK$’000 7B #HKS 000
FRBEE Non-current assets
W - REREBEM Property, plant and equipment 9 2,624,288 2,646,947
AT EHEE R Operating land lease prepayment 10 191,920 196,021
mEEE Intangible assets 11 25,409 29,256
FEHRNES Held-to-maturity securities 12 387,810 383,043
EEMES Structured notes 13 876,246 458,705
HEETER Structured deposits 14 77,505 38,907
4,183,178 3,752,879
REBEE Current assets
A=y Stocks 3,812 4,992
FEUIR K « & RTENFRIB Debtors, deposits and prepayments 200,751 209,444
FE UL B8 3E A IR Amounts due from related parties 16,294 18,103
B E MmN E 5 Held-to-maturity securities 12 70,010 -
BTN Structured deposits 14 10,000 103,377
IRITTFEK Bank deposits 1,632,012 1,958,486
B & RIRTTA Cash and bank balances 168,033 148,465
2,100,912 2,442,867
REEE Current liabilities
e Deposits (168,095) (129,223)
FEIIRFA N FERTE A Creditors and accruals (1,142,071) (946,684)
FERT R A IR SR Amounts due to related parties (284,549) (372,496)
FER LK Tax payable (58,009) (71,627)
(1,652,724) (1,520,030)
REBEEFEE Net current assets 448,188 922,837
BWEERERBAERS Total assets less current liabilities 4,631,366 4,675,716
FkRBEE Non-current liabilities
IEER I8 Deferred tax 16 (27,999) (19,227)
E B E Provision for employee benefits (449,303) (436,102)
(477,302) (455,329)
EEFE NET ASSETS 4,154,064 4,220,387
EARR #E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
BEESER Trading fund capital 17 2,495,059 2,585,296
BRES Development reserve 18 243,664 243,664
RE&EF Retained earnings 19 1,285,353 1,155,365
BREER B Proposed dividend 7 129,988 236,062
4,154,064 4,220,387
=2
§ %3 (G
REIE Clement Cheung
EEBHRER Postmaster General

EHBELEECHKRE

20099 H24H

FOOESSEMER N AAM B MR —D -

and General Manager,
Post Office Trading Fund
24 September 2009

The notes on pages 60 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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FAEER
EEESEAEM
EEETELRRD
BB B R
ENRE
FRER

Statement of Changes in Equity

Balance at beginning of year
Addition of trading fund capital
Reduction of trading fund capital
Profit after tax

Dividend paid

Balance at end of year

2009 2008
ERHKS000 [EEARINe00)
4,220,387 3,977,887
39,461 -
(129,698) -
259,976 472,123
(236,062) (229,623)
4,154,064 4,220,387

FO0EBSAMER IR AMBERERMN — 87

o

The notes on pages 60 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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HELAREKX  Cash Flow Statement

TR 2009 2008
Note ¥ HK$’000 B HK$ 000
EEEHAMNRSRE Cash flows from operating activities
BIERF Profit from operations 349,274 412,793
W - RERBMITE Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 131,780 118,140
TERT T M AQ & TH & B R 8 Amortisation of operating land
lease prepayment 4,101 4,101
B A E Amortisation of intangible assets 10,915 5,882
HEWE  RERSEMER Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 295 169
SR LA REIREEE Unrealised foreign exchange loss for
financial instruments 4,888 -
1E B 18 B I N Increase in provision for employee benefits 18,647 24,068
FE AT IR 3 R d2 B 3 N Increase in creditors and deposits 130,088 141,390
FERTRAE A TIRFR (O /&N (Decrease) / Increase in amounts due
to related parties (79,644) 20,912
IR R R 7 & 12 N Increase in debtors and stocks (4,245) (16,485)
FEU B A IR SRR A/ (38 0) Decrease / (Increase) in amounts due
from related parties 1,808 (8,967)
RETESBTAMB KA Cash receipts from derivative
financial instruments 1,150 13,576
EENETE Tax paid (71,627) (62,304)
REELEBEENES TR Net cash from operating activities 497,430 658,275
REEENEERE Cash flows from investing activities
R BAPR B 1B 3 & H &Y Decrease / (Increase) in structured
HEBERRBITFEIORD/(E 1)  deposits and bank deposits with
original maturity over three months 186,796 (105,149)
BABZHROE S Purchase of held-to-maturity securities (187,852) (384,690)
ERFEZHRNES Redemption of held-to-maturity securities 110,000 62,262
BAGEEIEES Purchase of structured notes (662,382) (459,056)
B 4RI ES Redemption of structured notes 229,128 -
BEWE  REMBEVAEFEE  Purchase of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets (201,788) (102,712)
B U F & Interest received 90,146 97,831
AEREBEENESRE Net cash used in investing activities (435,952) (891,514)
MEBEANESRE Cash flows from financing activities
BKE Dividend paid (236,062) (229,623)
AEMEBENEREFE Net cash used in financing activities (236,062) (229,623)
RERERREHDERE Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (174,584) (462,862)
FUNESREFRELEE Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 1,066,455 1,629,317
FRNESREFHREEE Cash and cash equivalents at
end of year 20 891,871 1,066,455

FEO0EBSEM RN ANT BRI —FH - The notes on pages 60 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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B 7% %R 2 3 72 Notes to the Financial Statements

1. —REHR General
SOREIE1995F 7 A19ARE (&iEXE S  The Post Office Trading Fund (POTF) was established on 1 August 1995 under the
1&5)) (55430% )53« 4M6IEBHRE © Legislative Council Resolution passed on 19 July 1995 pursuant to sections 3, 4
F1995F8HIANY BRELERES ° and 6 of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430).

HHEBELEESCMTIEERZIRM—ME  The principal activities of the POTF are provision of general postal and ancillary
B MRS - WAE2000F 1 AR AR A services, and electronic services after the POTF became a Recognised Certification
BEREE  MRHEBRSFEEZRS - Authority in January 2000. With effect from April 2007, electronic services are
H2007F4 A% - EEHEFEEMBHE  provided through a contractor under the supervision of the POTF.
HRELERSEBRAMIRME -

2. TEETHHER

(a) HEEREH
AMBEHRERERBREELAANE

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting

SR B K BTG B R B B B
ERA (LARGE EhEES
e A G M A E A
BMASEMGHREZA BB E
HEAERE) RE - BRELE
ECHRANTIERHRERES
mT e

BEGEAGRN T ZREAES
HIRAEMO I REETNEER G
HEEL - BARAMBHRERAER
MERNETERE  WREGELERR
A R -

BRELEESWRARMNELRES
HAR 5 R A R R AN (FERE24) ©

principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the POTF is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period. There have been no changes to
the accounting policies applied in these financial statements for the years
presented as a result of these developments.

The POTF has not applied any new standard that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period (note 24).
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2. FEEHEE (F)
(b) WMEAHHKAEGE

(c)

BREN TS BRMAMNITESRT
ARNAFEIIRIN - ABBHRED
REEMGURERALE -

RELT BB BB ISR R
REBREEEFEAE - AT RERR -
EHE - B RBEREFEETK
ROEE AREE BE  BAR
XHH 2R o L F AR RAARER
RE - ARUNELR L EMCERRE
MTRBAEENEMEAZMEL - &£
REREAMIRKBIBNERT - AIRA
HEEFRBRIERHBBREER
BEMKREENER - HHEREER
BREENKE TR -

FEEF RABRREERFER
e AT ET A BETHR
AZERTENE R » MEsthat
METHERRARKROHBY AR
£ Az EZH R RRYE
FERR ©

BRELEECHERSTHRTE
WA RAEAI B 6 69 & 5 HIE - it
S HREBRELEEESIAHARR
FHEENRR  REEREMRTA
BRN A FERMEZNFAARE
Z HEREERAEMIREE I
BERFHERENHENER -

WM > BEREM

1995 F8A1THREBHRELEHR
CHME  RERSEN  RYREK
VASRBKIBRELEESHR
EPATYIAERKAERNGEEAR -
1095F 8A1HUBEENMZE - &
BREM  HERBERERENE
BREZEAIAR-

AT EIEYE - LB RSMUKAE
MKk EFIME MIMRERBEEEE
BERATIRGEE2()) :

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements
is historical cost except that derivative financial instruments are stated at
their fair values as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
for making judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Reuvisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the application of the
POTF’s accounting policies. There are also no key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the POTF on 1 August 1995
were measured initially at deemed cost equal to the value contained in the
Resolution of the Legislative Council for setting up the POTF. Property, plant
and equipment acquired since 1 August 1995 are capitalised at the actual
direct expenditure of acquisition and installation.

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses (note 2(f)):

61
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B 7% %R 2 3 72 Notes to the Financial Statements

2. FESHEE (F)
(c) Y3 - RIEREEM ()

(d)

NARHELTHHE AEF - i
WoF AEM T HEEHEE A
(FEFE2(d))

- BRREERELEEACNEMAR
BF BFRAENTHESIEN
EEE UK

- REkSEY  BREARKE -
RN RERERAR -

FERRBRYE  RERBEMEREET
AEAFER  ERERGFERE
BUAEARZEHERBNKAE - B6H
MR ERFERIT

- HRHEE T EFERREIER
A& F B R Af T AT 68 R F A UA T
ERORRETENE

- HtbEF 20 - 40%F

- RARKE 54

- RRAE R - 154

. EHH 4- 5%

- BREES 5%

HEME  [EBERBEMNEE - IR

HEMFRRFEEGHEENIRE
ENEZERET  INHEERERS

ANTHKEEEER

BNt EHEERARMNEEL
i EERETONTO LIRS - £
WEHIMERZHEAR  REEAR
R P IR AME N R 5t 85 X (R
BEEEIIR(GEE2(f) - L E D A
BERORRRSEEFHEN -

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
- buildings held for own use situated on leasehold land. The land element
is treated as an operating land lease prepayment (note 2(d));

- other buildings held for own use appropriated to the POTF. The land is
regarded as a non-depreciating asset; and

- items of plant and equipment, including furniture and fittings, plant and
machinery, motor vehicles and computer systems.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, on a straight line basis over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of
the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives

- Other buildings 20 - 40 years
- Furniture and fittings 5 years
- Plant and machinery 7 - 15 years
- Motor vehicles 4 - 5 years
- Computer systems 5 years

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the profit and loss
account on the date of disposal.

Operating land lease prepayment

Operating land lease prepayment is the land element of the payment for
a building held for own use situated on leasehold land. The land element,
accounted for as an operating lease, is stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses (note 2(f)). The
land element is amortised on a straight-line basis over the unexpired term of
the lease.
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2. TEGFHEE (B)
(e) BLEE

(f)

BENEERREBANEREFERK
BEENMEKRRFREAFEKRA
B> AERTREAERM LT
MEBBRELEECHARAERNE
EEKFAELE FREMNARERS
WEMME - EXLERBREERTE
EMHER - BLEERKAEHE
R EHRMEMREBRIIR(EE
2(f)) °

BEEMNBHREENTR AR
FH (6F) MEREIIABER -

B EEENRE

EBEGEERFTHEEEE(RREY
¥ RERHEM - BENTEEEE
ERLETMEE)NIREE  ARE
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences and
capitalised development costs of computer software programmes.
Expenditure on development of computer software programmes is
capitalised if the programmes are technically feasible and the POTF
has sufficient resources and intention to complete development. The
expenditure capitalised includes direct labour and cost of materials.
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment losses (note 2(f)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the profit and loss account
on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Impairment of fixed assets

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property, plant and
equipment, operating land lease prepayment and intangible assets, are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the profit
and loss account whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its net selling price and value in use.

Financial assets and financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition
The POTF classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities into
different categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred. The categories
are: trading financial instruments, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity securities and other financial liabilities.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair
value, which normally equals to the transaction prices plus transaction
costs for loans and receivables, held-to-maturity securities and other
financial liabilities that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset or issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs on
trading financial instruments are expensed immediately.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Initial recognition (continued)

The POTF recognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the
date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for
at settlement date.

Categorisation

Trading financial instruments

The POTF does not acquire financial instruments for the purpose of
trading. However, derivative financial instruments that do not qualify
for hedge accounting are categorised as “trading” under HKAS 39,
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.

Embedded derivatives that are separated from the host contracts (note
2(g)(iv)) are also categorised as “trading” under HKAS 39.

Trading financial instruments are carried at fair value. Changes in fair
value are recognised in the profit and loss account in the period in
which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and
which the POTF has no intention of trading. This category includes
debtors, amounts due from related parties, structured deposits, bank
deposits and cash and bank balances.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less impairment losses, if any (note 2(g)(v)).

Held-to-maturity securities

Held-to-maturity securities are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturity which the POTF has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other than those that
meet the definition of loans and receivables.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(ii) Categorisation (continued)

Held-to-maturity securities (continued)
Held-to-maturity securities are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment losses, if any (note 2(g)(v).

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

(iii) Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive
the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or where the financial
asset together with substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(iv) Embedded derivatives

(v)

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument
that includes both the derivative and a host contract with the effect that
some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar
to a stand-alone derivative.

An embedded derivative is separated from the host contract and
accounted for as a derivative when (a) the economic characteristics and
risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to those of the
host contract; and (b) the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the profit and loss
account. Where the embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
is accounted for according to its category (note 2(g(i)).

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
securities are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists,
an impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. If in a subsequent period the amount of such impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through the profit and loss account.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

(i)

(i)

(k)

Stocks

Stocks consist of postage stamps and aerogrammes held in the stamp
vaults at the Headquarters. They are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and bank balances, and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when
the POTF has a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the outflow of economic benefits expected to settle the obligation.

Employee benefits

Salaries, staff gratuities, and annual leave entitlements are accrued and
recognised as expenditure in the year in which associated services are
rendered by the staff. Staff on-costs, including pensions and housing benefits
provided to the staff by the Government, are charged as expenditure in the
year in which the associated services are rendered.

The POTF has set up a Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) Scheme by
participating in a master trust scheme provided by an independent MPF
service provider to comply with the requirements under the MPF Schemes
Ordinance. Contributions paid and payable by the POTF to the Scheme are
charged to the profit and loss account.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n
(i)

(i)

(iii)

Income tax

The Government requires the POTF to pay a notional profits tax
calculated on the basis of the provisions of the Inland Revenue
Ordinance (Cap. 112). Tax expense for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the assets can be utilised, are recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amounts
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such deduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

(m) Revenue recognition

(i)

Revenue from postal services is recognised as the services are
provided. Allowance for a measured share of stamp income for the
amount of revenue from postage stamps sold in respect of which
postal service has not yet been provided is made at the year end.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (continued)

(n)

(o)

(ii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the POTF estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instruments but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees received or paid
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

(iii) Realised gains or losses on financial instruments are recognised
in the profit and loss account when the financial instruments are
derecognised. Changes in fair value of trading financial instruments are
recognised as revaluation gains or losses in the profit and loss account

in the period in which they arise.

(iv) Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. All
exchange differences are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

Related parties

The POTF is a separate accounting entity within the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region established under the Trading
Funds Ordinance. During the year, the POTF has entered into transactions
with various related parties, including government bureaux and departments,
trading funds and financially autonomous bodies controlled or significantly
influenced by the Government, in the ordinary course of its business.
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3. BXH Turnover
2009 2008
B HK$’ 000 7B B HK$ 000
— % BB I AR 7% General mail services 4,352,864 4,221,774
MBI A Miscellaneous revenue 203,070 151,384
4,555,934 4,373,158
4. BERA Operating costs
2009 2008
& HK$’ 000 7B B HK$ 000
BIXA Staff costs 2,178,914 2,099,735
—REKIBEIERAX General mail operating expenses 1,688,409 1,530,680
HeRkERSB Rental and management charges 151,077 165,303
e R g Depreciation and amortisation 146,797 128,123
MiGHEE A Marketing expenses 23,615 20,298
RRITHRER Central administration overhead 16,283 14,865
ETER Audit fees 1,565 1,361
4,206,660 3,960,365
5. Hy(Z )/ A Other (expenses) / income
2009 2008
B HK$’ 000 7B B HK$ 000
SEEBIBRE AR TFEIIRE Interest income from financial assets not
TREENNEKA at fair value through profit or loss
¥ & Bl AV 8 55 Held-to-maturity securities 15,551 18,980
HEBMES Structured notes 27,072 2,630
HERETF N Structured deposits 8,695 2,978
HRITIF Bank deposits 47,216 90,860
SRITHE Bank balances 799 1,983
99,333 117,431
MESHBIARN Net realised and revaluation (losses) /
FER R B (EE)/ R gains on derivative financial instruments (121,849) 18,943
(22,516) 136,374
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6. BiE
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Taxation
(a) Taxation charged to the profit and loss account represents:

2009 2008
7B HEHK$’000 B HEHKS 000
Current tax
Provision for notional profits tax for the year 58,009 87,661
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 9,938 (10,617)
Reduction in opening deferred taxes resulting from
reduction in tax rate (1,165) -
Total tax expense 66,782 77,044

(b) BRI Rt & A EA
PR E R H IR -

B 7% AT 2 F

REBFEH E16.5%TE 8
T3 (20084 £&17.5%)

2007-08F & — X MR IEE R,

AR A 2 IR 28

EEFRIRANRIBEZE

TR T A B EE R IR

BERPBIARM X

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2009 2008

75 ¥ HK$’000 75 B HK$’000

Profit before tax 326,758 549,167
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5%

(2008: 17.5%) 53,915 96,104
One-off tax reduction in 2007-08 - (25)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 14,032 1,920
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue - (20,955)
Reduction in opening deferred taxes

resulting from reduction in tax rate (1,165) -
Actual tax expense 66,782 77,044
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7. BEBERE Proposed dividend
BMBLEBRTNRESHEENEA The proposed dividend to the Government is based on 50% of profit after tax for
BB BEFH50%:TE - the year.
2009 2008
B HK$’ 000 B HKS 000
FYE Balance at beginning of year 236,062 229,623
B A Dividend paid (236,062) (229,623)
IF SRR B Dividend proposed for the year 129,988 236,062
F IR LR Balance at end of year 129,988 236,062
8. EEEEMBE Rate of return on fixed assets

BFrEERBREZHREEEMN(TEIEFR  The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as profit after tax (excluding
BIRA - MERAZMITESBMTEMNEE  interest income, interest expenses and net realised and revaluation gains
BEEFRZESER)BRABETEEETFS  or losses on derivative financial instruments) divided by average net fixed
FEEME  WABEDEXRERR - BEEE assets, and expressed as a percentage. Fixed assets include property, plant
BIEYE  REREN AN LKL and equipment, operating land lease prepayment and intangible assets. The
EEAMEREE - EHBHREBELERS POTFis expected to meet a target rate of return on fixed assets of 8.4% per
ALEIMBRAFRMENEFEIRER  year as determined by the Financial Secretary.

% - BNEE & E TV FERS8.4% °
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9. 1% - RERSEM

&N

MR2007%4 /818
A /EIR

HE
20083 A31H

7A2008F4H1H
B A /IR

AR

HE
7A20093H31H

RITAE

R2007F 4 A1H
FRTE

& &R

R 2008F3H31H

7R2008F4H1H
FRANE

A

E&RE
7#2009%3H31H

e T 7 B

A2009%E3H31H
R2008F3A31H

Cost

At 1 April 2007
Additions / Transfers
Adjustments
Disposals

At 31 March 2008

At 1 April 2008
Additions / Transfers
Adjustments
Disposals

At 31 March 2009

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 April 2007

Charge for the year
Adjustments

Written back on disposal

At 31 March 2008

At 1 April 2008

Charge for the year
Adjustments

Written back on disposal
At 31 March 2009

Net book value

At 31 March 2009
At 31 March 2008

Land and

TRBF KARKE

Furniture

Buildings and fittings
BHHK$000 EH¥HK$000 #EH¥HK$000 E¥HKS$'000 E¥HKS$'000 &% HKS$000

Property, plant and equipment

R R
Plant and
Machinery

B
Motor

Vehicles

BRAS
Computer
Systems

et
Total

2,812,378 330,968 509,922 54,945 70,734 3,778,947
- 61,128 34,375 6,589 7,318 109,410
- (18,425) (1,623) - (498)  (20,546)
_ : - (18,946) s (18,946)
2,812,378 373,671 542,674 42,588 77,554 3,848,865
2,812,378 373,671 542,674 42,588 77,554 3,848,865
39,461 54,421 134,664 9,676 3,122 241,344
- (1,893) (120) - (216) (2,229)
(140,400) - (406) (4,051) - (144,857)
2,711,439 426,199 676,812 48,213 80,460 3,943,123
392,394 245859 366,713 51,019 46,684 1,102,669
61,816 30,394 27,957 2,190 12,693 135,050
- (15,879) (906) - (125)  (16,910)
- - - (18,891) - (18,891)
454,210 260,374 393,764 34,318 59,2562 1,201,918
454,210 260,374 393,764 34,318 59,252 1,201,918
61,159 35,218 26,324 3,226 7,105 133,032
- (946) (90) - (216) (1,252)
(10,702) - (110) (4,051) - (14,863)
504,667 294,646 419,888 33,493 66,141 1,318,835
2,206,772 131,553 256,924 14,720 14,319 2,624,288
2,358,168 113,297 148,910 8,270 18,302 2,646,947




10. AL REHEE A

&N
FHRFER

RET#E
F9)
FREH
£

R T FHE
FR

BI4E -

MBEE (B [ EUIRK -
me RAMNKEA])

FRBEE

B 7% ¥R 2 37 ¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

Operating land lease prepayment

Cost
At beginning and end of year

Accumulated amortisation
At beginning of year
Charge for the year
At end of year

Net book value
At end of year

Classified as:
Current assets (included in “Debtors,
deposits and prepayments”)
Non-current assets

E B IR F R 2008/09

2009 2008
BEHKS000 BEkieieyee)
251,600 251,600
51,478 47,377

4,101 4,101

55,579 51,478
196,021 200,122
4,101 4,101
191,920 196,021
196,021 200,122

MMEVEE

RES
4]
WA/ BIE
B
e
i

Ritmes
4]
EPYHTE
il
ot
i

R FHE
Fi

Intangible assets

Cost
At beginning of year
Additions/Transfers
Adjustments
Disposals

At end of year

Accumulated amortisation
At beginning of year
Charge for the year
Adjustments
Written back on disposal

At end of year

Net book value
At end of year

BRSERR AR K R AT R B A AR
Computer software licences
and system development costs

2009 2008

# ¥ HK$’000 75 HK$000
299,450 307,148
7,306 2,512
(238) (10,066)

= (144)
306,518 299,450
270,194 264,343
11,083 15,659
(168) (9,777)

= (31)
281,109 270,194
25,409 29,256
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Held-to-maturity securities

2009 2008
# ¥ HK$’000 75 #HK$ 000

Debt securities at amortised cost:

- Listed outside Hong Kong 250,168 253,010

- Unlisted 207,652 130,033
457,820 383,043

Remaining maturity:

Within one year 70,010 -

Over one year 387,810 383,043
457,820 383,043

Mo EHBFNBTALI A RBEBRRE?
HUmAITT LI R AR 42 -

13.EBMUES

ERIEES  ENEMEX
BIATIHE METE

- [BIE R Hi = i
-BREESWERE

- M EHENER

- BEHSMER HEVEE

FIsh a8 -
1A £

Some of the debt securities are subject to call option to be exercised at the
discretion of the issuers before maturity date.

Structured notes

2009 2008
BEHKS000 REkieleyee)

Structured notes with interest at
rates determined by reference to:

- constant maturity swap rate 77,505 -
- the value of the underlying
investment funds 393,326 396,454
- the value of the underlying
market indices 343,411 -
- the value of the underlying forward
foreign exchange transactions 62,004 62,251
876,246 458,705

Remaining maturity:
Over one year 876,246 458,705

PEBEEFNABENTAETAC BES
DF W RITETAEARR (FEE15) °

MR2008F R EMMIGHEZEHKER
SHEBERETE  —HBEABLESFNARE

WINAPRA - BR1EZ - EEEESOHE
B EESESFER  MEHAEFIE -

For these structured notes, the embedded derivatives are separated from the
notes and accounted for as derivatives (note 15).

Due to the significant decline in the value of the underlying investment funds
resulting from the deterioration of the world’s financial markets during 2008, the
embedded derivative of one structured note was crystallised on 5 December
2008, while the host contract was still being accounted for separately. Upon
crystallisation, the payoff of the structured note would be the same as a zero-
coupon bond with the date of maturity unchanged.
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14.5BEFX Structured deposits
2009 2008
& HK$’000 7 B HK$ 000
EETR EFE Structured deposits with interest
-2REBRTAEREERR - at rates determined by reference to the
MBIRITRIEFELET Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or
the London Interbank Offered Rate - 108,940
-2RIEEERREIERET - at rates determined by reference
to the exchange rates for specified
currency pairs 10,000 33,344
-2BRMGEYEET - at rates determined by reference
to a market index 77,505 -
87,505 142,284
FIEREFH] - Remaining maturity:
PZ M E Within one year 10,000 103,377
15 E Over one year 77,505 38,907
87,505 142,284
2 BRIETINERC S ER RTS8 For the structured deposits with interest at rates determined by reference to the

BETMEMEBETFR  HREITET  exchangerates for specified currency pairs and market index, the embedded derivatives
AEBBEGFRSH  WHAITETAEAIKR  are separated from the deposits and accounted for as derivatives (note 15).

(3E%815) o
15.5TESmT A Derivative financial instruments
(a) TTES BT AMIIRAEEAE (a) Carrying values of derivative financial instruments
2009 2008
BE =i BE aE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
78 - HK$’000 7 ¥ HK$'000 Pekdplte ooz Tidulie el
REIINE S K Forward foreign
exchange contracts 67 3 254 =
EEEEEMERNABENETLR Derivatives embedded
in structured notes
and deposits 593 44,062 10,734 179
660 44,065 10,988 179

PTHESBMT AREEBETERIZE395:  Derivative financial instruments are categorised as trading financial instruments under
FHEARZAENERT A WEATF  HKAS 39 and carried at fair value. Their positive and negative fair values as shown
BEFIR - LA LFIREEE AFECHR  above have been recognised as assets and liabilities and included in “Debtors, deposits
BEENMEBE  UHRMA [EUIE and prepayments” and “Creditors and accruals” respectively.

P B RBEAFRE] R [EAERKR

EEtER] A-
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15.57T42m T A (§)
b) TTAESB T AN BEEEE

EHINES K
BRBIEES RFR
WRENTETA

Derivative financial instruments (continued)
(b) Notional amounts of derivative financial instruments

2009 2008
# ¥ HK$’000 75 HK$ 000

Forward foreign exchange contracts 139,509 171,191

Derivatives embedded in structured
notes and deposits 504,519 484,665
644,028 655,856

RIVEMIERHNEIZENERRES

By 488
R -

TESRTANBRERRERTHEZHH
#E  MIFRKRERER -

16 EZE R 1B
EEABRAERNELERIBNEZHK
BAREERNEFH2FIAT

2007F4 B 18 &6k
RERKED

20083 A 31 H &4

20084 A 1H #&es
RS R/ (RE)

2009 3A 31H ek

Forward foreign exchange contracts are entered into primarily to protect the POTF
from the impact of currency fluctuation during the normal course of business.

The notional amounts of derivative financial instruments indicate the volume of
outstanding transactions and do not represent amounts at risk.

Deferred tax
Major components of deferred tax recognised in the balance sheet and the
movements during the year are as follows:

BRAERANTER

BERTERHRE

Depreciation
allowances in Hith

excess of TRMHER

the related Other
depreciation and temporary #Et
amortisation differences Total
BEHKS000 EHEHKS000 % *¥HK$000

Balance at 1 April 2007 30,582 (738) 29,844
Credited to profit and

loss account (10,511) (106) (10,617)
Balance at 31 March 2008 20,071 (844) 19,227
Balance at 1 April 2008 20,071 (844) 19,227
Charged / (Credited) to

profit and loss account 8,834 (62) 8,772

Balance at 31 March 2009 28,905 (906) 27,999
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17.8BEEEER Trading fund capital

HABNEHEESEESMNIEE - This represents the Government'’s investment in the POTF.
2009 2008
BEHKS000 BEkieleyee)
F R Balance at beginning of year 2,585,296 2,585,296
A0 Addition 39,461 -
Ve Reduction (129,698) -
FRER Balance at end of year 2,495,059 2,585,296

R2009F 1819 F I&EREEXKBEE  On 19 January 2009, a decision was made by the Secretary for Financial Services
ERTISSEENEEHBEEEEES - and the Treasury to appropriate 55 carparking spaces to the POTF at a valuation
& E B E A5 %39,461,0007T ° of $39,461,000.

HHBERHAE 4T SEIN20084F 4  The ex-Mail Deck Area of the General Post Office was returned to the Government
18 2 REFE S 82,000,000 08 at the net book value as at 1 April 2008 of $82,000,000. The premises of the
e BEBMNAEBHBEEREH K  Harbour Building Post Office and the Canton Road Post Office were returned to
BINLA20084E8 831 H 2 E @ F@E %%  the Government at the net book value as at 31 August 2008 of $47,697,874.
47,697 ,874TT FIEEUT °

BIEVKEELREESBREMNSE - it Onthe advice of the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury, the above

BEHN AMEBLEESHLBEESEAR  movements were reflected as adjustments to the POTF’s trading fund capital.
18. % B #fE Development reserve

2009 2008
7 HK$000 7 HK$ 000

FH R FREERR Balance at beginning and end of year 243,664 243,664

2009331 HiEth AREAERNES » aJF  The balance at 31 March 2009 is uncommitted and is earmarked for future
ER REF R BER o development.
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19.RE & F Retained earnings
2009 2008
B HKS000 RaiAsleXeee
FAEER Balance at beginning of year 1,155,365 919,304
bR BT Profit after tax 259,976 472,123
REEHER S Dividend proposed for the year (129,988) (236,062)
FUREERR Balance at end of year 1,285,353 1,155,365
20.5¢RERRSER Cash and cash equivalents
2009 2008
B HKS'000 BeEk-igleXeo)
H& RIRTTEH Cash and bank balances 168,033 148,465
JRB EAPR B A 3E A B R1TIF K Bank deposits with original
maturity within three months 723,838 917,990
891,871 1,066,455

1. BEHBEEALTETHRS
BEEAREREASERBHT S - B
MEALEREERATNRMEEXSHE
mF -

(a)

MR E A IR RS B 18 — AR EB R
RR 7% Ko B8 B AR BE B (R IR PR 7S © B L AR
TEH U A 4B 58 575 #183,889,9297T
(2008 : #¥5206,332,3247T)

HEAEALTRHEORT2EEER
% EIRIARTS © 1BIIRTS - BT ERE
MUEE - PR AHAE - FRITEK
FATIRTE o BLRIS S RAK A 2%
575 ¥118,673,6687T (20084 : Bk
243,645,1507T)

MEAEATEAREEE  BESH
BEMEETIR BE L RIESF -
MRS B RFRER o FL
BEMK N BEE /B 55,144,1377T
(20084 : 7#&¥546,806,3657T) A K&

Related party transactions
Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the other
material related party transactions for the year are summarised as follows:

(a) Services provided to related parties included general postal services and
agency services, which are compatible with postal related services. The
total revenue derived from these services amounted to HK$183,889,929
(2008: HK$206,332,324);

(b) Services received from related parties included computer services, printing
services, training services, building management and maintenance, rental
of accommodation, central administration and auditing services. The total
cost incurred on these services amounted to HK$118,673,668 (2008:
HK$243,645,150);

(c) Acquisition of fixed assets from related parties included fitting out projects
of post offices, acquisition of land and buildings, plant and machinery,
computer systems and motor vehicles. The total cost of these assets
amounted to HK$55,144,137 (2008: HK$46,806,365); and
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NBEATETHRS (B) Related party transactions (continued)
(d) BHELEESHSHAMEIEM  (d) The POTF received government grants relating to the provision of
BRETIZERBESBTRER - electronic services through a contractor. During the year, government
FA - BAFERAE®S,638,0427T grants of HK$3,638,042 (2008: HK$4,500,278) were deducted from
(20084 : 7B #4,500,2787T) B R B the related expenses incurred by the POTF. As at 31 March 2009,
ELERSHMEBAIT R - 82 the balance of government grants carried forward to the next year
20094 3AH31H  HEAT—EAFE amounted to HK$11,153,076 (2008: HK$10,511,118).

B IR T 8 SR AL 5R B 511,153,076 7T
(20084 : 7#%10,511,1187T) °

mEEE A TR L BEEEATIRMEAMR  Services rendered to or received from related parties which were also available to
%o MR R ARIEM  WEEARMNME  the public were charged at the rates payable by the general public. Services which
A RIS mEEE A TR - BB were available only to related parties were charged on a full cost recovery basis.
LAU [E] 2 8RR A FTE o

22 7K & Commitments
(a) BEAEE (a) Capital commitments
E2009F3HA31H  BEELEED At 31 March 2009, the POTF had capital commitments, so far as not provided
BRYAEA MmN EFRBHER for in the financial statements, as stated below:
HHE
2009 2008
B HK$’000 7B B HK$ 000
BEETEEL Authorised and contracted for 112,574 198,262
EREBEAREY Authorised but not yet contracted for 123,997 156,859
236,571 355,121
(b) LR EAE (b) Operating lease commitments
E2009F3A31H * TREEUE M L At 31 March 2009, the total future minimum lease payments under non-
REFEEHENARZEHEER cancellable operating leases for land and buildings were payable as follows:
BRI
2009 2008
B HK$’000 7B B HK$ 000
1EARA Not later than one year 85,202 84,685
1FRBTZREF Later than one year and
not later than five years 185,010 187,573
5% 1& Later than five years 1,064,240 1,059,180

1,334,452 1,331,438
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23. 0 KR b BB Financial risk management
(a) REBE (a) Investment policy
BIEMEFEIRARER - BEBHBREE To provide an ancillary source of income, surplus cash is invested in a
BERemIAEMNKEEHRS - REHESE portfolio of financial instruments. The portfolio includes held-to-maturity
BEFZHNNES  SBEES securities, structured notes, structured deposits and bank deposits. It is
EBEERRIBITFER BHREEER the POTF’s policy that all investments in financial instruments should be
CTHERATE TBECRLAMKERE principal-protected.

BRAEE -

(b) E¥ Rk (b) Currency risk
EERRERESMIAENATFES K Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
KBS ME G EIMNEEXEB) MK instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
H[ELfg
FA BRELEEASCTEERRARE During the year, the POTF recognised a net exchange gain of HK$42,462,870
RAFEBBEZARFEINIEN S (2008: a net exchange loss of HK$26,903,812) in the profit and loss account,
Bh & B AT Sl BV B Ik & F RE B B arising on financial instruments not at fair value through profit or loss.

42,462,8707T(20084F : [E H 85 558
75 #26,003,8127T) °

HHEBLEESFILRHAIINESL - The POTF enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to protect it from

WREBEESLCERBEET EBEE the impact of currency fluctuation during the normal course of business.
VR o

TERBAHHBLEESTEBRERSY The table below summarises the POTF’s foreign currency exposure at the

SNMEAHN T BENEEBHNINER balance sheet date after taking account of the effect of forward foreign
SRR exchange contracts:

2009 2008
BE 8% BE af&
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BHHK$000 7&¥HK$000 RafaslseRoloolz:: 5 ie 000

E US dollar 1,404,924 72,629 1,508,972 16,657
15 Bl 42 TR RE Special Drawing Rights 28,397 576,666 39,401 609,886
H b g & Other foreign currencies 21,826 10,950 4,372 33,078

1,455,147 660,245 1,552,745 659,621

EHEEBER AT —EBMBEENE The management considers a 50 basis points increase/decrease in the exchange rate of
THABETEXRESEE R TR the US dollar against the Hong Kong dollar in the coming financial year to be reasonably
BEIE AN/ R D B0EEE - i B 8 possible. Had such an increase/decrease occurred at the balance sheet date, the profit
o/ EAE B E - KNE after tax for the year would have been increased/decreased by HK$5,562,332 (2008:
EOBRHERNB M KD  HKB,155,799).

75 #5,662,3327T (20084 - B

6,155,7997T) °
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23. K EBER (8)

(b)

(c)

E%¥RAR (8)
ERENRA T —EMBFEERNERIR
i R E A INE BT E RS IRER
A BEE N/ A 500 E R, - N RE i
MmO ELEEBEE - NEERHRT
‘BRI AL INE22,436,1747T
(20084F : ##24,716,6377T) °

B L gRESNE - RREEX

MNEPDRERARELEHRENSR
TH-
Fl = @ B

A 2= ez =2 1 R T 5 M SR B2 B i 5| 2R
BEORR MNEXARATE-—FD
BAFENEXRER MRS REN X
[\ -

NFENEREREESBRTENRF
B R MIZH RS MK R -
HREBRELEBESHNMBIRITER
R 75 2 B 1O 58 75 4% B E M R 5T B A
B BEMSMNXERE  ELEERN
RNFEHETHK - AT > ARELE
EEIGIREE SHRANE DI IR - BT 5 R
EHTeHHRAELRBRELEE
TRARNRFEEHEEREE

RengfxmEBItEeBmTANK
KRG RES AT SN XREE MK
MER  BRELEETHERSR
ENEXRER  ERERSEBIEES
S2RMBLENMEEFE - EEERR
T—EMBEENTSNEERERB
WU AT BESE h0/R D BOEE B - 1B
BN/ RO RN EEBRELE BB
BRI SDRBRFEFHE -
MBRELEZSNBNNHEETS
B (20085F B E) - Hi s L&
BREDHNE  EREMENESHEE
AREAEARANGRBIEES - M
RITWAREHMATITEIR P B -

TERUEZRA EEEEZAE AMNKRE
B HANEIMNEEHKRIHES
BMEAREN AR E)SIRE K
ELEECMHNMERER

Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Currency risk (continued)

(c)

The management also considers a 500 basis points increase/decrease in
the exchange rates of Special Drawing Rights and other foreign currencies
against the Hong Kong dollar in the coming financial year to be reasonably
possible. Had such an increase/decrease occurred at the balance sheet
date, the profit after tax for the year would have been decreased/increased
by HK$22,436,174 (2008: HK$24,716,637).

The above sensitivity analyses have been prepared assuming that the
change in exchange rates had been applied to the financial instruments in
existence at the balance sheet date.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market
interest rates. This can be further classified into fair value interest rate risk
and cash flow interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Since all the
POTF’s bank deposits and held-to-maturity securities bear interest at fixed
rates, their fair values will fall when market interest rates increase. However,
as they are all stated at amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will
not affect their carrying amounts and the POTF’s profit and reserves.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
POTF is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk because some of its structured
notes bear interest at rates determined by reference to market interest rates.
The management considers a 50 basis points increase/decrease in market
interest rates in the coming financial year to be reasonably possible. Had
such an increase/decrease occurred at the balance sheet date, the interest
on the structured notes would have been received at the same rates and
the POTF’s profit and reserves would not have changed (2008: Nil effect).
This sensitivity analysis has been prepared assuming that the change in
interest rates had been applied to the structured notes in existence at the
balance sheet date and that the call option had not been exercised by the
banks before maturity.

The table below sets out the POTF’s exposure to interest rate risk, based on
the major interest bearing assets stated at carrying amounts at the balance
sheet date and categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing dates or
maturity dates.

81
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QB HBEEBREE (&) Financial risk management (continued)
(c) REER (&) (c) Interest rate risk (continued)

BT A= H PR Repricing period
B HBiB3{E A BiR1F BiR25
3ERA (EFEBIE EFEB2E EFREBSE

3 months More than More than More than

or less 3 months but 1 year but 2 years but
not more than not more than not more than et
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
BHEHKS000 BHEHKS$000 E#HK$S000 HEHHK$000 & ¥ HKS 000

2009
BEZHmKESH Held-to-maturity securities 20,007 50,003 - 387,810 457,820
HEBHES Structured notes 77,505 - 116,258 682,483 876,246
HBIFX Structured deposits - 10,000 77,505 - 87,505
RITHFER Bank deposits 1,033,838 598,174 - - 1,632,012
1,131,350 658,177 193,763 1,070,293 3,053,583
2008
FEH MM S Held-to-maturity securities - - 70,045 312,998 383,043
HEEMEES Structured notes - - - 458,705 458,705
HEREER Structured deposits 108,940 33,344 - - 142,284
RITIF Bank deposits 1,568,477 390,009 - - 1,958,486

1,677,417 423,353 70,045 771,703 2,942,518
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2. M BREMER (8) Financial risk management (continued)
(d) FERE (d) Credit risk

EERRERESBIAEN —F e Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
BIEEMSIBES — AR ZMFEK discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.
B R o
EHEER  BREBELEESTREE At the balance sheet date, the POTF did not have significant concentrations
REBESEEFHBER - TRINFHR of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date
EEBRFAFENEMEMRmaE without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements is
HRAEEE=ZBENRAREER shown below:
REE

2009 2008
BEHKS000 EEkiReyee]

YRR R IR E Debtors and deposits 200,490 207,431
FE Y B 38 A TR X Amounts due from related parties 15,640 18,103
REHRNES Held-to-maturity securities 457,820 383,043
HEEEES Structured notes 876,246 458,705
HEBFR Structured deposits 87,505 142,284
RITER Bank deposits 1,632,012 1,958,486
RITEEER Bank balances 141,505 115,091

3,411,218 3,283,143

HHELEES —MAMRTERE BRI E The POTF has policies in place to ensure that wholesale postal services are
HEETHERINEFREESIRAERZHE  provided to customers with an appropriate credit history. Credit exposure to an
BHEBRS - HENXZXSHFHEERK  individual counterparty is restricted by credit limits. The counterparty’s payment
AERARNEERE - SABEEAESHE  profile and credit exposure are continuously monitored by respective management.
BERZIZHFONTMRIEEERE o Postal services to retail customers are substantially settled in cash.

—REEY IR

AEBREEERR  FrEEEFR &S Tominimise credit risks, all fixed deposits and structured deposits are placed with
FRAEREEEEENE B EMRT - high-credit-quality licensed banks in Hong Kong.
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Q.M EEREE (&)
(d) EER (&)

EREA  pFEMRNERREE
HEFNEEERELITIRFIR
HERaNREEBEENFRTH
BEERE) AT

RIEEFTRIIEHRFZE R
KIS REEREIEES

Aaa/AAA

Aal £ Aa3/AA + E AA -

A1ZE AB/A+ E A-

Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Credit risk (continued)

At the balance sheet date, the credit quality of investments in held-to-
maturity securities and structured notes, analysed by the lower of ratings
designated by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s, was as follows:

2009 2008
it ] CVR 8 HK$ 000

Held-to-maturity securities and

structured notes by credit rating

Aaa/AAA - 110,000
Aal to Aa3/AA + to AA - 511,118 731,748
A1 to AB/A +to A - 822,948 -
1,334,066 841,748

Hef —IHEREEMI 7008 THRER
B EEFA - RREZBBREANE
BERIRME -

(e) RBEZRR

(f)

MEE T R EEEESHAEITE
TRABERBENTENRR

ERpESRERERETH  BRES
ERETBBRMAMBNRSHRBELRE
REBEETHRBES - BHERAUMNUE
NABRHMAEREHNESHEL
HREBERELEETHRDPES R
# o BRBESRBRERERKF -

ATE
EXBERNBRINEMIAND
TE RRRGEAMTSRES
R o R A RS TISEE - BUARE
S E RS B TR
BUSHHERATE -

MESRIEOUREMAFERSE
ZHEETRNESRIABERER -

The credit rating of one of the investments amounted to HK$37million was based
on the credit rating of its guarantor.

(e) Liquidity risk

(f)

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The POTF manages liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of cash required
and monitoring its working capital to ensure that all liabilities due and
known funding requirements could be met. As the POTF has a strong
liquidity position, it has a very low level of liquidity risk.

Fair values

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. In the absence of such
quoted market prices, fair values are estimated using present value or other
valuation techniques, using inputs based on market conditions existing at
the balance sheet date.

All financial instruments are stated in the balance sheet at amounts equal to
or not materially different from their fair values.
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Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations
issued but not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2009

Up to the date of issue of the financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a
number of amendments, new standards and interpretations which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2009 and which have not been early
adopted in the financial statements.

The POTF is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected to be in the period
of initial adoption. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the POTF’s results of operations and financial
position.

The following revised standards may result in new or amended disclosures in
future financial statements:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKAS 1 (Revised)
Presentation of Financial Statements

1 January 2009

Amendments to HKFRS 7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

1 January 2009
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